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Mission
We deploy technology solutions that enable growth.

Vision
To be the Africa’s No. 1 IT platform service provider by 2020.

Quality Policy
CWG shall deliver ICT solutions that will add value to our 

customers’ operation, meet and exceed our customers’ 

expectation and we shall deliver them right first time and 

all the time.
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thNOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the 10  Annual General Meeting of COMPUTER 
WAREHOUSE GROUP PLC will hold at Lilygate Hotel, Olubunmi Owa Street, N.B.D., Lekki 

th
Phase 1, Lagos on Thursday the 25  day of June, 2015 at 12.00 noon prompt to transact 
the following ordinary business:

 To lay before the members, the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
 31st December, 2014, and the Reports of Directors, Auditor and Audit  
 Committee;
 

 To a declare dividend;

 To elect a director;

 To authorize Directors to fix the remuneration of Auditor

 To elect members of the Audit Committee.

OKEY EJIBE
Company Secretary

FRC/2013/NBA/00000003272

Notes:
· Proxy: A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual 

General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. A 
proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of Proxy must be completed 
and deposited at the office of the Company's Registrars, Africa Prudential Registrars 
Plc of 220B, Ikorodu Road, Palmgrove, Lagos not later than 48 hours before the time 
fixed for the meeting. Please note that the lodging of a proxy form does not prevent 
you from attending the meeting and voting in person should you so wish. However, if 
you attend the meeting in person, your proxy will not be permitted to attend or vote.

· Audit Committee: Any member of the Company may nominate a Shareholder as a 
member of the Audit Committee of the Company by giving notice in writing of such 
nomination to the Company Secretary at least 21 days before the Annual General 
Meeting.

· Closure of Register: The Register of Members was closed on 8th June, 2015, for the 
purpose of updating the Register.

· Election of Director: Mr. Kunle Ayodeji is being proposed for election as Executive 
thDirector. He was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors on 16  April, 2015. 

He is being presented for Shareholders' approval at this meeting.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

DATED THIS 1ST DAY OF JUNE 2015
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
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   Philip Obioha Director-COO
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 Abiodun Fawunmi Non-executive
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 Emmanuel Ijewere Non-executive
 Kunle Ayodeji Executive Director 

(Appointed 16th April, 2015)

REGISTERED OFFICE Block 54A, Plot 10,
 Off Rufus Giwa Street,
 Off Adebayo Doherty Road, 
 Off Admiralty Way
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the affairs of Computer Warehouse 

Group Plc (“the company”) together with its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the consolidated 

audited nancial statements of the Group and Company for year ended 31 December 

2014.

LEGAL FORM

Computer Warehouse Group Plc was incorporated in Nigeria as a private limited liability 
 

company on 1 February 2005 and became a public limited liability company on 15 

November 2013. The registration number of the company is RC 615619

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of integrated information and 

communications technology services

STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the Directors, the state of the Group's affairs is satisfactory and there has 

been no material change since the reporting date, which would affect the nancial 

statements as presented.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

     The Group The Company
     2014   2014
       N'000 N'000

    Turnover    15,356,280              14,595,482
     =========  =========

    Prot before taxation   57,636                   109,018
    Taxation     62,381                     67,215
      ------------  ------------
    Prot after taxation   120,017                  176,233
     =======             =======

DIVIDEND

The directors recommend the payment of dividend of 2 kobo per share for the year ended 31 

December 2014 (2013: 8 kobo per share) The dividend is subject to approval of the 

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and withholding tax at the appropriate rate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Information relating to movement in property, plant and equipment is shown in Note 15 to 
the nancial statements.  In the opinion of the Directors, the market values of the Group's 
properties are not less than the value shown in these nancial statements.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has notied the Company for the purpose of Section 277 of the 

Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 of any 

discloseable interest in contracts with which the Company is involved as at 31 December 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND 
CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
F OR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
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DONATIONS

The company made a donation of N5,994,540 to charitable organization during the year 

ended 31 December 2014  (2013: N5,862,096).

DIRECTORS 

The names of the Directors at the date of this report and of those who held ofce during the 

year are as follows:

Chief Willie Belonwu  Chairman

Austin Okere   Managing Director/Chief Executive Ofcer

Philip Obioha     Director - COO

James Agada   Director - CTO

Abiodun Fawunmi   Non Executive

Ravi Sharma   Non-Executive 

Emmanuel Ijewere   Non-Executive 

Kunle Ayodeji    Executive Director  (Appointed 16th April, 2015) 

SHARE HOLDINGS AND SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST IN SHARES

The issued and fully paid share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2014 was 

benecially owned as follows:

 Number            Nominal

 of Shares Holding       Value

  % N

   Aureos Africa Fund LLC 517,576,289 20.50 258,788,145

   Abiodun Bamidele Fawunmi 500,671,088   19.83 250,335,544

   Philip Obioha 500,671,088   19.83 250,335,544

   Austin Okere 647,829,608 25.66 323,914,804

   James Agada 101,707,006     4.03     50,853,503

   Ijewere Emmanuel                                          1,000,000                   0.04                    500,000                      

   Others   255,371,280  10.11  127,685,640

 ---------------------- ---------- -------------------

 2,524,826,359 100.00    1,262,413,180

 ============ ===== ===========

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

Directors' interests in the issued share capital of the Company are as disclosed above.

EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEES

1. Employment of Physically Challenged Persons

 It is the Company's policy that there is no discrimination in considering applications for 

employment including those from physically challenged persons. All employees 

whether or not physically challenged are given equal opportunities to develop their 

expertise and knowledge and to qualify for promotion in furtherance of their careers.  

The company had one physically challenged person in its employment as at 31 

December 2014.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND CONSOLIDATED 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST DECEMBER 2014 CONT’D
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2. Welfare

The Company is registered with a Health Management Organisation (HMO) – (KBL 

Healthcare Limited).  Staff, Spouse and 4 children choose a primary health care 

provider, where cases of illness are referred for treatment. 

3. Training

The Company attaches great importance to training and all categories of staff 

attend courses or seminars as considered necessary by the Company's 

management. 

Incentive schemes designed to meet the circumstances of each individual are 

implemented wherever appropriate and some of these schemes include, bonus 

promotions and wages review.

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilities and commitments have been taken 

into account. These liabilities are relevant in assessing the company's state of affairs.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

As stated in Note 32, there are no events or transactions that have occurred since the 

reporting date which would have a material effect on the nancial statements as presented.

FORMAT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The nancial statements of Computer Warehouse Group Plc have been prepared in 

accordance with the reporting and presentation requirements of the Companies and Allied 

matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 20014 and are in compliance with 

the International Financial Reporting Standards reporting format as approved by the 

Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria. The Director considers that the format adopted is the 

most suitable for the Company. 

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has indicated its willingness to continue in ofce as the Company's auditors in 

accordance with Section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of 

the Federation of Nigeria 2004. A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting 

empowering the Directors to x their remuneration.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Okey EJIBE

COMPANY SECRETARY 
LAGOS, NIGERIA

31 March 2015

FRCN/2014/NBA/00000003272

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS AND CONSOLIDATED 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST DECEMBER 2014 CONT’D



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

INTRODUCTION

CWG strongly believes that good corporate governance fosters openness, 
transparency, accountability, honesty, selessness, integrity, good leadership, 
and effective monitoring of performance in every corporate setting. As a 
company quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange, CWG places a lot of 
importance on its responsibility to protect and increase shareholder and 
stakeholder values. CWG prides itself as a company that applies global best 
practices in corporate governance, with a view to creating value for all its 
stakeholders. 

The Board of Directors of CWG (“the Board”) considers itself as a trustee of the 
Company's stakeholders and acknowledges its responsibilities towards 
safeguarding their interests in the Company. In line with its vision to be Africa's 
Number One IT Platform Service Provider by 2020, CWG aspires to be a global 
IT industry benchmark for value creation and good corporate governance. 
The Company's corporate governance practice is evident in its Board and 
Management structures, as well as the principles applied in the day-to-day 
activities of the Company. In addition to its corporate governance policy 
document, the Company complies with the Code of Corporate Governance 
for Public Companies issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

CWG continuously reviews its corporate governance policy in order to 
conform to additional compliance requirements and changes in global best 
practices. The Company also has an Ethics and Conduct Policy which 
encapsulates the Company's ethical values, and which all employees 
undertake to comply with in their relationship with both internal and external 
stakeholders.

At CWG, it is believed that institutionalizing best practices and corporate 
governance structures would go a long way to ensure the attainment of the 
Company's vision, mission and quality objective; thereby increasing 
stakeholder value.

6
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The u l t imate respons ib i l i ty  fo r  the 
governance of the Company resides with 
the Board which is accountable to the 
shareholders of the Company for creating 
and delivering sustainable value through 
efcient management of the Company's 
bus iness .  The Board carr ies  out  i t s 
responsibility through its Committees: the 
F inance,  Aud i t  &  R i s k  Commi t tee 
(“FARCOM”) and the General and All 
Purpose Committee (“GENCOM”), which 
also report and make recommendations to 
the Board on issues within their respective 
terms of  reference.  Through these 
Committees, interactive dialogue is 
employed on a regular basis to set broad 
policy guidelines, and to ensure proper 
management and direct ion of the 
Company. All members of the Board and 
Board Committees have access to the 
services of the Company Secretary.

Currently, the Board comprises eight (8) 
members, four (4) of whom are Executive 
Directors, while the other four (4) are Non-
Executive Directors. One of the Non-
Executive Directors is an Independent 
Director. The effectiveness of the Board 
derives from the appropriate balance and 
mix of skills and experience of the Directors, 
both Executive and Non-Executive. The 
Company's Board is made up of seasoned 
professionals who have excelled in their 
various elds of endeavour, including 
c o m p u t e r  s c i e n c e ,  e n g i n e e r i n g , 
economics as well as accounting, and 
possess the requisite integrity, skills and 
exper ience to  b r ing  independent 
judgment to bear on the deliberations of 
the Board.

The Board and the Board Committees 
respectively meet quarterly in each 
nancial  year,  although addit ional 
meetings may be convened when the 
need arises. Decisions are taken at the 
Board meetings by way of resolutions, as 
provided for in the Companies and Allied 

Matters Act, 2004. The Board met four (4) 
s tt imes  du r ing  the  year  ended 31  

December, 2014.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is saddled with the responsibility 
of determining the strategic objectives and 
policies of the Company with a view to 
deliver long-term value by providing overall 
strategic direction within a framework of 
rewards, incentives and controls. The Board 
also ensures that Management strikes an 
appropriate balance between promoting 
long-term growth and delivering short-term  
ob ject ives .  In  fu l  l l i ng  i t s  p r imary 
responsibility, the Board is aware of the 
importance of achieving a balance 
between conformance to corporate 
governance principles and economic 
performance of the Company.

Powers reserved for the Board include, inter 
alia, the approval of the Company's 
strategy and nancial objectives, as well as 
monitoring the implementation of the 
strategy and objectives; approval of the 
Company's  investment  pol icy and 
framework, as well as investments and 
strategic commitments that may have 
material effects on the assets, prots or 
operations of the Company, and any 
material changes in the nature of the 
business of the Company; approval of the 
Company's nancial statements and any 
signicant change in the accounting 
policies and/or practices; appointment or 
removal of Company Secretary; approval 
of major changes in the Company's 
c o r p o r a t e  o r  c a p i t a l  s t r u c t u r e ; 
recommendation to shareholders of the 
appointment or removal of Auditors and 
the remuneration of Auditors; approval of 
r e s o l u t i o n s  a n d  c o r r e s p o n d i n g 
documentation for shareholders in general 
meeting(s).

Other powers reserved for the Board are 
the determination of Board structure, size 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST DECEMBER 2014 CONT’D

GOVERNANCE  STRUCTURE

 THE BOARD
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and composition, including appointment 
and removal of Directors, succession 
planning for  the Board and senior 
management and Board Committee 
membership; oversee the establishment, 
implementation and monitoring of the 
Company's risk management framework to 
identify, assess and manage risks facing the 
Company, and also review and approve 
new or revised risk policies recommended 
by FARCOM for approval; approval of 
remuneration policy and packages of the 
Directors, appointment of the Managing 
D i r e c t o r ;  a p p r o v a l  o f  t h e  B o a r d 
pe r fo rmance eva luat ion  p roces s , 
corporate governance framework and 
review of the performance of the Executive 
Directors; approval of policy documents on 
signicant issues including Enterprise Risk 
M a n a g e m e n t ,  H u m a n  R e s o u r c e s , 
Corporate governance and Anti – Money 
laundering, and approval of all matters of 
importance to the Company as a whole 
because of their strategic, nancial, risk or 
reputational implications or consequences 
for the Company, among others.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING 
DIRECTOR

The positions of Chairman and Managing 
Director are separate and both perform 
dist inct functions in l ine with good 
corporate governance practices and in 
compliance with relevant statutory/legal 
provisions. The Chairman of the Board, who 
is a Non-Executive Director, is saddled with 
the responsibilities of ensuring that the 
Board fulls its obligations as required under 
relevant legislations and to provide 
appropriate leadership to the Board and to 
t h e  C o m p a n y ;  e n s u r i n g  e f  c i e n t 
organisation and conduct of the Board; 
monitoring Board and Board Committees' 
performances annually; facilitating Board 
d i scuss ions  and ensur ing that  the 
discussions are conducted in an open and 
professional manner where every Director is 
encouraged to express his/her views, 
leading to objective, robust analysis and 

debate; ensuring the effective induction of 
n e w  D i r e c t o r s  a n d  c o n t i n u o u s 
development of all Directors; promoting 
consultative and respectful relationship 
among the Board members, and between 
the Board and Management; ensuring 
e f f e c t i v e  c o m m u n i c a t i o n  w i t h 
shareholders and chairing the Company's 
general meetings, among others.

The Board has delegated the responsibility 
for the day-to-day management of the 
Company to the Managing Director/Chief 
Executive Ofcer, who is supported by the 
Executive Management. The Managing 
Director executes the powers delegated to 
him in accordance with guidel ines 
approved by the Board. The Managing 
Director is also empowered to sub-
delegate certain responsibilities and 
authority to such members of the Executive 
Management team as he deems t. The 
Executive Management is accountable to 
the Board for the development and 
implementat ion of  the Company's 
strategies and policies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The effectiveness of the Board of the 
Company is fortied and strengthened by 
its two (2) Committees, viz; FARCOM and 
GENCOM, each chaired by a Non-
Executive Director. The Board carries out its 
responsibilities through its Committees, 
which have clearly dened terms of 
re fe rence,  set t ing  out  the i r  ro les , 
responsibilities, functions and scope of 
a u t h o r i t y .  T h e  C o m m i t t e e s  m a k e 
recommendations to the Board, which 
retains responsibility for nal decision 
making.

FARCOM

The Committee, among other functions, 
oversees the design and implementation of 
the Company's internal control and risk 
management systems, and periodically 
review and assess the adequacy of the 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST DECEMBER 2014 CONT’D
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Company's internal control systems, both nancial and non-nancial. Also, the Committee 
reviews and advises the Board on accounting policies to be used in the preparation of the 
Company's audited nancial statements.

The Committee currently consists of ve (5) members: three (3) executive members and (2) 
non-executive members. The Committee meets 4 times in each nancial year, and may 
convene additional meeting if the need arises.

GENCOM

GENCOM, among other functions, oversees and makes recommendation to the Board with 
respect to the implementation of the Company's business strategies, capital expenditure, 
regulatory compliance, Directors' annual performance target and compensation, as well as 
other human resources matters. The Committee also ensures that the Company's Ethics and 
Conduct Policy is complied with.

The Committee currently consists of six (6) members: three (3) Executive Members and (3) 
Non-Executive Members. The Committee meets 4 times in each nancial year, and may 
convene additional meeting if the need arises.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST DECEMBER 2014 CONT’D

During the period under review, the members of FARCOM were:

Mr. Emmanuel Ijewere

Mr. Austin Okere

Mr. Philip Obioha

Mr. Kunle Ayodeji

1.

2.

3.

4.

S/N NAME STATUS DESIGNATION

Non-Executive

Executive

Executive

Non-Executive 
(Representative of Abraaj)

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Mr. Wale Agbeyangi5. Non-Executive

During the period under review, the members of GENCOM were:

Mr. Austin Okere

Mr. Philip Obioha

Mr. James Agada

Mr. Kunle Ayodeji

2.

3.

4.

6.

S/N NAME STATUS

Executive

Executive

Executive

Non-Executive 
(Representative of Abraaj)

Mr. Abiodun Fawunmi1. Non-Executive

Member

DESIGNATION

Member

Member

Member

Member

Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

This Committee is responsible for ensuring 
that the Company complies with all 
r e l e v a n t  r e g u l a t o r y  p o l i c i e s  a n d 
procedures, as well as policies laid-down 
by the Board of Directors. Its major functions 
include the review and approval of the 
audit scope and plan of the external 
auditors, review of the audit report on 
internal weaknesses observed by both the 
internal and external auditors during their 
respective examinations and to ascertain 
whether the accounting and reporting 
p o l i c i e s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  a r e  i n 
accordance with legal requirements and 
agreed ethical practices. The Committee is 
responsible for the review of the integrity of 
the Company's nancial reporting and 
o v e r s e e s  t h e  i n d e p e n d e n c e  a n d 
objectivity of the external auditors. The 
Committee has access to external auditors 
to seek explanations and additional 
information, while the internal and external 
auditors have unrestricted access to the 
Committee, which ensures that their 
independence is in no way impaired.

The Committee is made up of 3 Directors 
and 3 Shareholders of the Company 
appointed at Annual General Meetings, 
while the Company Secretary of the 
Company serves as the secretary to the 
Committee. The membership of the 
Committee at the Board level is based on 
re levant  exper ience of  the Board 
members, while one of the shareholders 
serves as the Chairman of the Committee.

The internal and external auditors are 
invited from time to time to attend the 
Meetings of the Committee. Appropriate 
members of Management also attend the 
meetings upon invitation. The Committee 
meets at least 3 times in a year. The 
fo l lowing members  se rved on the 
Committee during the 2014 nancial year:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST DECEMBER 2014 CONT’D
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

The table below shows the frequency of meetings of the Board of Directors and Board 
Committees, as well as attendance of their respective members, for the nancial year 
ended December 31, 2014.

Mr. Emmanuel Ijewere5. Non-Executive Director Member

During the period under review, the members of AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Mr. Ibekwe Robert

Alhaji Wahab Ajani

Mr. Philip Obioha

Mr. Kunle Ayodeji

2.

3.

4.

6.

S/N

S/N

NAME

DATE OF MEETINGS

STATUS DESIGNATION

Shareholders' Representative

Shareholders' Representative

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Member

Member

Member

Member

Mr. Amaechi Patrick Onyema

Chief Willie Belonwu

1.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Shareholders' Representative Chairman

BOARD GENCOM FARCOM

17/04/14
28/08/14
16/10/14
11/12/14

17/04/14
28/08/14
16/10/14
11/12/14

15/04/14
26/08/14
14/10/14

Mr. Austin Okere

Mr. Philip Obioha

Mr. James Agada

Mr. Abiodun Fawunmi 

Abraaj Representative 

Mr. Emmanuel Ijewere

Mr. Wale Agbeyangi

4 4 3

4

3

3

4

4

4

4

N/A

NUMBER OF MEETINGS

N/A

3

3

4

4

4

4

N/A

2

2

N/A

N/A

3

3

N/A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST DECEMBER 2014 CONT’D
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PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Chief Willie Belonwu
- Chairman

Chie f  W i l l i e  Be lonwu i s  an  as tu te 
professional with a credible track record of 
business and board management. He 
graduated as an accountant in 1973 from 
the University of Nigeria, Enugu Campus, 
where he nished as the best student in his 
class. He obtained an MBA in 1982 from 
Century Univers i ty,  USA. Dur ing his 
professional career, he worked with Exxon 
Mobil where he held various key positions in 
Nigeria and the United States of America. 
He was the Executive Finance Director of 
Exxon Mobil for fourteen (14) years and 
ended his Exxon Mobil career as Vice 
Chairman and Chief Financial Ofcer of 
Mobil Producing Nigeria Unlimited, in 
December 2005. Chief Belonwu is currently 
a director in Ecobank Nigeria Plc, and also 
the Chairman of Dreamworld Leisures 
Limited.

Austin Okere 

- CEO

Austin Okere is the Chief Executive Ofcer of 

t h e  C o m p a n y .  H e  p o s s e s s e s  a n 

unprecedented air for visioning, strategy 

and branding. Austin is a graduate of 

Computer Science from the University of 

Lagos. He also holds an MBA degree from 

the International Graduate School of 

Management (IESE), Navara, Spain. He is a 

member of several professional and 

leadership bodies, including ICT Advisory 

Board, Nigerian Competitive Council and 

Nigerian Economic Summit Group. He also 

serves on the Executive Committee of the 

Nigerian-South Afr ican Chamber of 

Commerce. He has been recognized and 

honoured locally and internationally with 

many awards in  recognit ion of  h i s 

contribution to the information and 

communications technology world. He is 

currently an Entrepreneur in Residence at 

Massachusetts Institute of Technology's 

Legatum Centre.
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Philip Obioha 

Phillip Obioha is a consummate professional 
with a reputation for brokering and assuring the 
smooth conclusion of the most complicated 
negotiations and transactions.  Philip trained as 
an Electrical Engineer at the West Virginia 
University, Morgantown, West Virginia in USA. 
However, his mastery of nancial engineering 
and operations raises the bar in the realm of 
business nance and operations. Phillip also 
holds an MBA from the International Graduate 
School of Management (IESE), Navara, Spain, 
as well as several information technology 
product certications. He is a member of 
several professional bodies including the 
Institute of Directors (IOD). He is the Chief 
Operating Ofcer of the Company.

Abiodun Fawunmi 

Abiodun Bamidele Fawunmi is a highly 

experienced technology expert who, in his 

career, has led multi-cultural professional teams 

to high levels of effectiveness in a variety of 

competit ive industr ies and fast-paced 

environments.  Armed with strong technical 

and business qualications, he has created an 

impressive track record of more than 35 years of 

hands-on experience in strategic planning, 

business unit development and resource 

management. He holds Post-graduate level 

degrees in Engineering, Computing and 

Business Administration from various African and 

European Universities.  He also had short term 

t r a i n i n g  i n  F i n a n c e ,  M a n a g e m e n t  o f 

I n t e r n a t i o n a l  O r g a n i z a t i o n s  a n d 

Developmental Economics from Ivy League 

Universities.

He has played signicant roles in multi-national 
o rgan izat ions  such as  She l l ,  Un i lever , 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers and Coca-Cola. 
Between 2004 and 2011, he was the Head of 
Infrastructure Services at the United Nations 
International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) in 
Vienna. He is currently the Chief Information 
Ofcer (CIO) at the United Nations International 
Criminal Tribunal for Rwanda (UNICTR).

As co-founder of NEOPANORA (an international 
network of Energy professionals) he led a team 
that provided pro bono advisory services to 
National Governments on renewable energy. 
He relishes working with and supporting Nigerian 
Institutions of Higher learning as well as People 
living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHA). Abiodun is a Non-
Executive Director of CWG and the Chairman of 
GENCOM.
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James Agada

James Agada is a highly innovative and 

versatile technology expert. He holds both 

a rst class degree and a Master's Degree in 

Electronic Engineering, with specialization 

in Digital Systems, from the University of 

Nigeria, Nsukka. He also holds an MBA from 

the international Graduate School of 

Management (IESE), Navara, Spain. James 

is an Executive Director of the Company 

and is highly regarded in the IT industry 

where he has spent over 20 years building a 

c a r e e r  i n  c o n s u l t i n g ,  s o f t w a r e 

development,  implementat ion and 

support. He was pro tem president, Lagos 

Chapter of the Nigeria Computer Society, 

and was conferred with the “Titans of Tech 

Merit Award” in 2013, by Technology Africa.  

He is the Chief Technology Ofcer of the 

Company, and the Executive Director 

overseeing the Company's software 

division, ExpertEdge. James has the primary 

responsibility for the Company's research 

and development unit. 

Ravi Sharma

Ravi Sharma is a Non-Executive Director of 

the Company. He is a Managing Director 

with the Abraaj Group (“Abraaj”), with over 

15 years' experience gained in the elds of 

private banking, investment banking and 

private equity. He holds an MBA from the 

University of Wales and has a BSc in 

Economics & Accounting from the City 

University, London.

Ravi is responsible for sourcing, structuring, 
monitoring and exiting investments across 
various sectors, for Abraaj. Ravi joined 
Abraaj in 2001 as a consultant and was a 
key member of the local team that 
established the Aureos West Africa Fund 
LLC (AWAF) in 2003 and subsequently the 
Aureos Africa Fund LLC (AAF) in 2008. Prior 
to joining Aureos Nigeria Advisers, Ravi 
worked for Aureos Ghana Advisers, where 
he was involved in 11 exits from Ghana 
Venture Capital Funds (GVCF) portfolio 
companies. He has been instrumental to 
the investment of over US$600million of 
Abraaj Funds in West Africa. He was also 
responsible for the partial divestment from 
two of the AWAF portfolio companies in 
Nigeria. Ravi sits on the board of nine 
Abraaj portfolio companies. 
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Kunle Ayodeji

Kunle Ayodeji is a seasoned professional with 
over 15 years' experience in the elds of 
banking, nancial consulting and private 
equity. He joined Computer Warehouse 
Group Plc (“CWG” or “the Company”) on 9th 
March, 2015 to oversee the operations and 
nance functions of the Company. Prior to his 
joining CWG, He was an Investment Principal 
with Aureos Capital and later became an 
Associate Director at Abraaj, where he was 
instrumental in the investment of over US$45 
mi l l ion of  Abraaj  Funds,  two part ia l 
divestments and two full exit of Abraaj's 
portfolio companies in Nigeria. He also sat on 
the boards of a number of Abraaj's portfolio 
companies.

Before joining Aureos in 2007, Kunle was a 
Senior Consultant with the Financial Advisory 
Services unit of KPMG Nigeria where he was 
involved with the valuation, due diligence 
and feasibility studies for various corporations 
and state governments. He also worked at 
the Treasury Operations department of 
Triumphbank Plc in Lagos, Nigeria. 

Kunle was the Aureos representative on the 
Board of CWG from 2009 when Aureos 
invested in CWG, until December 2014. He 
has also been a member of both the 
Company ' s  F inance,  Audi t  and R i sk 
Committee (where he was the pioneer 
Chairman), as well as the General Purpose 
Committee. He holds a B.Sc. in Economics 
from Obafemi Awolowo University, Nigeria 
and an MBA f rom The Un iver s i ty  o f 
Birmingham, United Kingdom.

Emmanuel Ijewere 

Emmanuel Ijewere is one of Nigeria's most 

eminent accountants with very extensive 

connections across the banking, nance 

and political spectrums. Emmanuel started 

his accounting career in 1965 with Coopers 

& Lybrand and set up his own rm of 

Chartered Accountants, Emmanuel 

Ijewere & Co in 1979. He has served as 

Pres ident  to a number of  notable 

organizations such as, the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Nigeria, 

Nigerian Red Cross Society, Institute of 

Directors, among others. Over the years, he 

has garnered immeasurable experience in 

business and corporate management, 

particularly from his Chairmanship role in 

several companies, including Learn Africa 

Plc, Best Foods Global (Nigeria) Limited, 

Longman Nigeria Plc, Petra Micronance 

Bank, Salus Health Trust Management, CSN 

Investment Concepts Limited, Drum 

Resources Nigeria Limited, among others. 

H i s  Nat ional  Ass ignments  inc ludes 

Chairmanships of the Agriculture and Food 

Security Commission and the Modied 

Value Added Tax Committee. He is a 

member of the National Economic Forum, 

the International Investment Council and 

t h e  T e c h n i c a l  C o m m i t t e e  o n  t h e 

Privatization of Federal Government 

Companies and Parastatals. He is a Non-

Executive Director of the Company and 

the Chairman of FARCOM.
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Wale Agbeyangi

Wale Agbeyangi has valuable experience 

i n  t h e  c a p i t a l  m a r k e t ,  c o v e r i n g 

stockbroking, capital raising and nancial 

advisory services spanning over 15 years. 

He has a background in Law with a Master's 

Degree (LL.M), an MBA and he is a Fellow of 

the Chartered Institute of Stockbrokers 

(FCS) and an Authorized Dealing Clerk of 

The Nigerian Stock Exchange. Wale worked 

with Great Africa Trust Limited, Meristem 

Securities Limited and currently is the 

Managing Director/CEO of Cordros 

Capital Limited. He is a member of 

GENCOM
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Okey Ejibe

Okey Ejibe is a solicitor with vast corporate 
and commercial law experience, as well as 
a commendable t rack record of  
professional practice. He is currently the 
Company’s General  Counsel  and 
Company Secretary; and he oversees the 
legal function of the group. Prior to his 
engagement with CWG, Okey was a Senior 
Consultant at KPMG where he was 
consistently rated as an Exceptional 
Performer. 

He trained at the international law firm of 
Banwo & Ighodalo. Okey has participated 
in,  negot iated and closed many 
commercial transactions with interesting 
dynamics; and his major objective on any 
task/engagement is to solve-problems 
creatively within the confines of diligence 
and integrity. His specialties include 
corporate  governance,  cont ract  
management, mergers and acquisitions, 
intellectual property, taxation, as well as 
shareholders and board management. 

Aside from being an astute legal 
practitioner, he is a Chartered Tax 
Consultant and a member of several 
international and local professional bodies.
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Temi Marcella Olatunde
 
Temi Mercella Olatunde is an investor at 
The Abraaj Group. Prior to Abraaj, Temi was 
on the founding team of the EchoVC 
Partners’ Africa Fund, manager for the 
Nigerian Ministry of Communication 
Technology ICT innovation Fund. Temi was 
a founding board member and also on the 
board of t rustees of  the Olusegun 
Obasanjo Foundation and the Africa 
Investment Council.
 
Temi began her career at Goldman Sachs 
International in London where she played 
an instrumental role in building the rm’s 
investment and valuation framework for 
European small and mid cap companies. 
She was honoured as a Goldman Sachs 
Global Leader and as a Global Shaper on 
behalf of the World Economic Forum and 
serves on the board of Generation 
Enterprise.
 
Temi received a First Class Masters and 
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the 
University of Cambridge, where she was 
honored as a Christ’s College Scholar and 
has attained an MBA from the Stanford 
Graduate School of Business. She is an 
Alternate Director representing Abraaj 
interest in CWG.
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BOARD EVALUATION 

In line with the Company's effort to adopt 
and maintain best corporate governance 
pract ices ,  the Board engaged an 
Independent Consultant, DCSL Corporate 
Services Limited, to carry out the annual 
Board and Directors evaluation for the 2014 
nancial year. The evaluation covered all 
a s p e c t s  o f  t h e  B o a r d ' s  s t r u c t u r e , 
composition, responsibilities, processes, 
re lat ionsh ips ,  ind iv idua l  members ' 
competencies and respective roles in the 
Board performance, as well  as the 
Company's compliance status with 
provisions of relevant regulations.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION PROCESS 

The GENCOM i s  charged wi th  the 
responsibility of leading the process for 
Board appointments and for identifying 
and nominating suitable candidates for the 
approval of the Board. When considering 
an appointment, the Board seeks to 
achieve a balance and mix of appropriate 
s k i l l s  a n d  e x p e r i e n c e ,  w i t h  d u e 
consideration for integrity, professionalism, 
career success and ability to add value to 
the Company. The appointment of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders. 

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS TRAINING 

On appointment to the Board and to Board 
Committees, Directors receive an induction 
t a i l o r e d  t o  m e e t  t h e i r  i n d i v i d u a l 
requirements. The induction, which is 
arranged by the Company Secretary, may 
include meetings with senior management 
staff and key external advisors, to assist 
D i r e c t o r s  i n  b u i l d i n g  a  d e t a i l e d 
u n d e r s t a n d i n g  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s 
operations, its strategic plan, its business 
environment, the key issues the Company 
faces, and to introduce Directors to their 
duciary duties and responsibilities. Training 
and education of Directors on issues 
pertaining to their oversight functions is a 

continuous process, in order to update their 
knowledge and skills and keep them 
informed of new developments in the 
Company's business and operating 
environment. The Company attaches great 
premium to training its Directors; all the 
Directors attended trainings during the 
nancial year ended December 31, 2014. 

CHANGES ON THE BOARD

As part of the Company's strategy to 
strengthen its structures towards achieving 
its short and long term goals, the Board 
made some strategic appointments. Mr. 
Austin Okere, the CEO of the CWG, was 
appointed as the Vice Chairman. Also, Mr. 
Kunle Ayodeji was appointed as Executive 
Director in charge of F inance and 
Operations. His detailed prole is provided 
in page 16.

The Nigerian Stock Exchange has been 
notied about the appointments, and Mr. 
Ayodeji's appointment will be presented for 

th
shareholders' approval at the 10  Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.  

SHAREHOLDERS

The General Meeting of the Company is the 
highest decision making body of the 
Company. The Company's General 
Meetings are conducted in a transparent 
and fair manner. Shareholders have the 
opportunity to express their opinions on the 
Company's nancial results and other issues 
affecting the Company. 

The Board ensures the protection of the 
statutory and general rights of shareholders 
at all times, particularly their right to vote at 
general meetings. All shareholders are 
treated equally, regardless of volume of 
shareholding or social status.

The Board and Management of the 
Company ensures that communication 
and dissemination of information regarding 
the operations and management of the 
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Company to shareholders via the NSE and 
other media is timely, accurate and 
continuous.

THE COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary provides a point of 
reference and support for all Directors. The 
Company Secretary also consults regularly 
with Directors to ensure that they receive 
required information promptly. The Board 
may obtain information from external 
sources, such as consultants and other 
advisers, if there is a need for external 
expertise, via the Company Secretary or 
directly. The Company Secretary is also 
responsible for assisting the Board and 
Management in the implementation of the 
Company's Corporate Governance 
principles; assisting the Chairman and 
Managing Director to formulate an annual 
Board Plan and with the administration of 
other strategic issues at the Board level; 
organizing Board meetings and ensuring 
that the minutes of Board meetings clearly 
and properly capture Board's discussions 
and decisions.

INDEPENDENT ADVICE

Independent professional advice is 
available, on request, to all Directors at the 
Company's expense when such advice is 
r e q u i r e d  t o  e n a b l e  a  m e m b e r  o r 
committee of the Board effectively perform 
certain responsibilities. The Company bears 
the costs of independent professional 
advice obtained jointly or severally by a 
Director or Directors, where such advice is 
necessary to enable them full the 
obligations imposed on them by virtue of 
their Board membership.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee 
comprises senior management staff of the 
Company. The Committee analyzes and 
make recommendations on business 
prospects as well as risks arising from day to 

day activit ies of the Company. The 
Committee provides inputs for the Board 
Committees  and also ensures  that 
recommendations of the Board and Board 
Committees are effectively and efciently 
implemented. The Committee meets as 
frequently as necessary to immediately 
take action and decisions within the 
connes of its powers.

CODE OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT FOR 
EMPLOYEES

The Company has an internal Ethics and 
Conduct Policy which all members of staff 
are expected to subscribe to upon 
assumption of duties. All members of staff 
are expected to strive to maintain the 
highest standards of ethical conduct and 
integrity in all aspects of their professional 
life as contained in the Ethics and Conduct 
Policy which prescribes the common 
ethical standards, policies and procedures 
of the Company relating to employee 
values.

INTERNAL MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Company operates an internal 
management structure where all ofcers 
a r e  a c c o u n t a b l e  f o r  d u t i e s  a n d 
responsibilities attached to their respective 
ofces and there are clearly dened and 
acceptable l ines  of  author i ty  and 
responsibility.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Di rectors  of  the Company are 
expected to avoid any action, position or 
interest that conicts or may likely conict 
with the interest of the Company. Every 
Director is expected to declare annually 
his/her economic interests in any contract 
or arrangement between CWG and any 
other company in which he/she is also a 
director, ofcer, servant, creditor, or a 
holder of substantial shares or other 
securities. Every Director who has any 
material or personal interest in any matter 
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that relates to the affairs of CWG, is 
required to give the other Directors a notice 
of such interest during any meeting in 
which the matter is to be discussed. The 
Company Secretary is mandated to note 
such notice of interest in the minutes of that 
meeting. The Director who has a conict of 
interest is excluded from taking part in 
discussions and decisions relating to the 
conicted matter.

WHISTLE BLOWING

The Company's whistleblowing Policy is an 
i n t e g r a l  p a r t  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s 
commitment towards achieving the 
highest possible ethical standards in all its 
activities and in compliance with the 
requirements of global best practices and 
relevant laws and regulations. The Policy is 
designed to encourage the Company's 
Employees to raise concerns about 
malpractices, danger and wrongdoings 
internally without fear of any negative 
repercussion. 

The Policy also seeks to provide avenues for 
Employees and stakeholders to raise 
concerns and dene a way to handle 
these concerns; enable Management to 
be informed at an early stage about any 
act of fraud or misconduct; reassure 
Employees of their protection from 
punishment or unfair  t reatment for 
disclosing concerns in good faith; develop 
a culture of openness, accountability and 
integrity; foster good relations, avoid crisis 
management and minimize damaging 
incidents and unpleasant publicity about 
the Company.

The Policy demonstrates the Company's 
commitment to ensuring that its affairs are 
conducted ethically, honestly and to high 
standards, and conrms the Company's 
commitment to a culture of openness, 
accountability and integrity in line with its 
core values. 
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STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

Over the years, CWG has established and maintained very key strategic business 
relationships with leading ICT companies across the globe. In order to effectively deploy the 
tools developed by our numerous partners, we consistently ensure that our staff receive the 
necessary training and certification required to serve our clients effectively.

Oracle Hardware & Software

OEM

Platinum Level

PARTNERSHIP LEVEL

-

NEXT STEP

HP: Hardware & Software Silver Gold

IBM Hardware Premier Premier (Specialty Partner)

EMC Storage Afliate Elite Gold

NetApp Platinum Level Platinum

HDS Platinum ASP

Symantec Gold Partner Platinum

Cisco GoldGold

-

Infosys Business Partner Business Partner

Checkpoint Bronze Gold

Commscope Select Partner Gold

Gold

Aviat App. for partnership submitted VAR

APC By Schneider Electric Registered Partner Premier Partner

Bluecoat Authorized Elite Partner

RedHat Registered Partner Gold  Partner

Vmware Enterprise Partner Service Provider

EION
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E-Commerce Platform of the year, 2015

AWARD INSTITUTION RECIPIENT

Nigeria Communications 
Week

CWG

CWG

Distinguished SME Partner Award, 2014 Fidelity Bank Austin 
Okere

Austin 
Okere

Austin 
Okere

Austin 
Okere

Austin 
Okere

Austin 
Okere

IIM Special Award for Public/private Sector 2014 Institute of Information 
Management

Institute of Information 
Management

Information Management Personality 
of the year 2014 

Renewals Partner of the year (WECA), 2013/14 Vmware

Vmware

CWL

CWLSolution Provider of the year (WECA), 2013/14 

IT Personality of the Year Nigeria Computer 
Society(NCS)

Most Pragmatic CEO in ICT Enterprise The Nigeria ICT 
Centenary Awards

Certicate of Honour as a Technology Entrepreneur 
in Nigeria’s ICT Sector, 2014

Centre for Values in 
Leadership (CVL)

Global Growth Company, 2014 World Economic Forum CWG

CWG

ICT Man of the year, 2014 Nigeria Communications 
Week

Nigeria Communications 
Week

ICT Infrastructure provider of the year, 2014

2014 - 2015 CWG AWARDS
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Fel low shareholders, invited guests, 
distinguished ladies and gentlemen, I am 

thpleased to welcome you to the 10  Annual 
General Meeting of your Company. I am 
equally honoured to present to you a 
review of the business and operations of 
your Company for the nancial year ended 

st31  December, 2014
�
Our key business objective for 2014 was to 
Scale out the Subscription business in order 
to be the Number 1 IT Utility enabler in Africa 
by 2015, a business model that would 
provide predictability, as well as ensure 
annuity revenues. I am happy to report that 
we made signicant in-road into this 
mission, but have not achieved the desired 
scale that would put your company in the 
forefront of this business model.

We also made further progress in the 
consolidation of our position as a leading 
systems integrator in Nigeria despite the 
several macroeconomic challenges.  

MACROECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Nigeria has faced recent challenges to 
macroeconomic management related to 
weakening oil revenues and volatile short-
term capital ows. Gross foreign and scal 
reserves declined steadily from April 2013 
in to  the   r s t  quar te r  o f  2014 .  The 
Government met these challenges with 
prudent scal, monetary, and exchange 
rate pol ic ies ,  which succeeded in 
maintaining economic stability, reducing 
the pace of ination, and contributing to 
investor condence and a stabilization of 

CHAIRMAN'S 

REPORT

Your company is 

seizing the 

opportunity to 

drive steadily 

towards her new 

vision of becoming 

the No. 1 IT 

Platform Service 

Provider in Africa 

by 2020,

Chief Willie 

Belonwu 
(Chairman)
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the balance of payments position in the 
second quarter of 2014. The planned 
Revenue Framework and Federal Budget 
for 2014 suggested a resolve to maintain 
scal prudence in light of lower oil revenues, 
despite growing pressures in the pre-
election environment. 

The oil sector remains a primary source of 
macroeconomic uncertainty. Given the 
high dependence of the budgetary and 
balance of payments positions of the 
country on oil. Changes in prices or in the 
performance of the oil sector can have a 
major impact on the macroeconomic 
picture. A combination of regulatory 
uncertainty and increasing security 
challenges in the Niger Delta have limited 
investment and output in the oil sector in 
recent years. Declining oil revenues relative 
to the size of the Nigerian economy are 
already necessitating scal adjustment. 

The National Bureau of Statistics (NBS) 
announced new (re-based) numbers for 
GDP from 2010-2013. National accounts 
statistics in Nigeria had not been re-based 
since 1990. The re-basing exercise involved
Updating the universe of rms assessed to 
be operating in Nigeria by roughly ten 
times. The new GDP numbers imply that 
Nigeria had a Gross national product of US$ 
509 billion in 2013, making it the largest 
economy in Africa and the 26th largest 
economy in the world. The higher level of 
GD P  i n  N i ge r i a  a l s o  cha nges  the 
assessments of a number of other key 
economic indicators. Government budget 
decits now appear lower at close to 1% of 
GDP in recent years. 
However, the new GDP numbers suggest a 
more diversied and complex economy 
than do previous estimates. According to 
the former GDP numbers, the three sectors 
of agriculture, crude oil and gas, and trade 
accounted for as much as 85% of GDP. 
Now, agriculture, oil and gas, and trade 
cover only half (54%) of Nigerian output. 
Sectors that received signicantly higher 
new estimates of their shares in GDP include 

t e l e c o m m u n i c a t i o n s ,  r e a l  e s t a t e , 
manufactu r ing ,  cons t ruct ion ,  and 
entertainment.  The higher share of 
manufactu r ing  in  N iger ian  GDP i s 
encouraging, and this is due in part to the 
previously under-accounted food industry 
(4.4% of GDP)

While the re-basing has reduced the 
estimate of the share of oil and gas in GDP, 
this sector still accounts for a strong majority 
of exports and budgetary revenues in the 
country, and is therefore crit ical to 
macroeconomic and budgetary stability. 
The oil sector has faced a number of 
challenges in recent years in slower output 
growth, vandalism and theft, an uncertain 
regulatory environment, and low levels of 
Investment. The Petroleum Industry Bill, 
which was intended to clarify and improve 
regulatory conditions in the industry, has still 
not been passed into law in light of long 
standing controversies surrounding various 
PIB drafts under consideration in the 
National Assembly.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The fall in oil prices in 2014, created 
downward pressure on our foreign reserves 
which consequently led to various new CBN 
p o l i c i e s  t h a t  s a w  t o  a n  e v e n t u a l 
devaluation of the naira. The devaluation of 
the naira coupled with the political 
uncertainty towards the end of the year 
also saw portfolio investors, divesting from 
the economy and taking their money out of 
the country. This further increased the 
funding gap in the foreign exchange 
market, as the demand for dollars outpaces 
the supply, putting pressure on the value of 
the naira. 

INFLATION 

Inat ion has cont inued i t s  general 
downward trend in l ine with tighter 
macroeconomic policy since 2011. The rate 
of CPI ination remained high in 2012 (12%) 
due largely to non-monetary factors, 
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including increases in administrative prices, 
a national strike, and severe ooding in 
some regions. CPI ination fell to 8% in 2013, 
and has remained in this range in the rst 
half of 2014. Upward pressure on food prices 
prevented what would have been lower 
ination in early 2014.

The new Central Bank Governor assumed 
ofce in June, 2014 and has emphasized a 
high degree of continuity in the pursuit of 
monetary policy. This includes a high 
degree of exchange rate stability and a 
goal to gradually reduce interest rates 
along with progress in bringing down 
ination. The Central Bank also focused on 
programs aimed at assisting development 
in priority sectors of the economy.

The Boko haram insurgency which led to the 
declaration of state of emergency in Borno, 
Adamawa and Yobe States, in the northern 
Nigeria, persisted towards the end of the 
year.

The ministry of communication technology 
has supported the National broadband IT 
policy with the licensing of 2 out of the 7 
proposed Infraco companies. However, 
the much promised broadband revolution 
is yet to be felt

The telecoms industry has continued to 
thrive, with MTN leading the pack, albeit at 
a slower growth rate. The tele-density as at 
January 2015 was 101% at 142,589,775 
active subscribers

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Against the background of the harsh 
operating environment stated above, the 
operating results show an improvement in 
operating indices across most nancial 
segments and also afrm the Company's 
position as the foremost Pan African ICT 
services provider. 

The Company's gross margin percentage 
grew by 5%  to 20% (2013: 19%) while the 

nancing costs and general operating 
costs declined by 43% and 15% respectively 
to N199.8m and N2.7bn  (2013: Financing 
cost 348.7m, OPEX N3.2bn) showing better 
efciency of our operations. The Company 
also nished with an improved cash 
position of over N1.5bn at the year end.  

However,  the company's  revenues 
declined by N5.3b to N15.3bn (2013: 
N20.6bn) while the gross prot declined by 
27% to N3.0bn (2013: N3.9bn), reecting the 
harsh operating environment leading up to 
the elections in Nigeria, coupled with the 
fall in oil prices which slowed down 
economic activities during the year.  

The bottom line gures were affected 
primarily by two factors. First was the drop in 
the revenue gures with a less than 
corresponding drop in the operating costs. 
The second was the foreign exchange 
losses, of up to N380m, arising from the 
devaluation of the Naira and the Central 
Bank of Nigeria's (CBN) directive that 
excluded IT related companies from the 
Retail Dutch Auction System (RDAS) foreign 
exchange window.

The Company shall continue to focus, in 
continuing investments in new lines of 
business, christened CWG2.0, which are 
b e t t e r  p o s i t i o n e d  t o  w i t h s t a n d 
macroeconomic shocks, especially those 
relating to foreign exchange.  For instance, 
SMERP, the cloud based Enterpr ise 
Resource Planning (ERP) product for SME's is 
ready for roll out and is currently being 
tested by a few organizations.  There are 
also collaborative agreements with 
multilateral organizations, which are 
focused on the growth of SME's, in 
achieving inclusive growth in Nigeria, to 
deploy this product. CWG's agship e-
c o m m e r c e  t e c h n o l o g y  p l a t f o r m , 
openshopen.ng.  is currently being 
deployed, with a few online shops running 
on it, with the plan for a mass rollout towards 
the 3rd quarter of 2015. 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT CONT’D
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Openshopen, an investee company of 
CWG, (also operating  globally in Ireland, 
Spain, brazil, Portugal, Chile, Mexico, Kenya, 
Colombia & Panama),  is an online enabling 
technology at the forefront of facilitating 
businesses which aspire to grow fast at a 
lower cost, by going online and making their 
goods and services available on a wider 
spread, on  the internet.

CWG's smart grid solution for Electricity 
distribution Companies (DISCOS) has been 
running POC's for some of the Discos in 
Nigeria and we expect that this new line of 
business will be at implementation stage by 
Q3 2015. It is targeted at eliminating 
electricity theft, thereby improving the 
efc iency of  the whole  e lect r ic i ty 
distribution ecosystem.

The cloud based systems would also be 
made available to other African countries 
starting from the existing CWG operating 
bases in Ghana, Uganda and Cameroun 
and then to other African countries. This is in 
pursuit of the Groups PAN-African vision to 
be Africa's No. 1 IT platform service provider 
by 2020

Based on our immense contribution in the 
economy through various programmes, 
Within the period under review, CWG 
received several awards, amongst which is 
the “Distinguished SME Partner Award”, 
“Solution Provider of the year (WECA), 
2013/14”, “IT Personality of the Year for the 
CEO”, “Most Pragmatic CEO in ICT 
Enterprise”, “Global Growth Company”, 
“ICT Man of the year, 2014 for the CEO” and 
“ICT Infrastructure provider of the year, 
2014”

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Computer Warehouse Group, in pursuit of its 
soc ia l  corporate respons ib i l i ty  has 
continued the promotion of educational 
excellence in higher institutions in our 
communit ies ,  as our  n iche area of 
contribution to sustainable development. 

We have committed to advance this value 
in specic Higher Institutions in Countries in 
Africa where we have established physical 
presence. We have continued to support  
the following universities for our CSR focus: 
University of Lagos, Lagos; Makarere 
University, Uganda and University of 
Ghana, Legon.  We reward the best 
graduating student in Computer Sciences 
department of the aforementioned Higher 
Institutions, and also provide immediate 
employment for them.

CWG has continued to grow the talent 
pool for the IT industry and in effect 
increase the overall knowledge base, for 
the benet of the society at large, through 
the CWG training academy.  We have 
graduated over 300 students to-date, and 
most of them are currently working with us 
as well as with renowned organizations like 
IBM, MTN, KPMG among others.

CWG through her group CEO is engaged 
in voluntary teaching in Entrepreneurial 
development centres such as Lagos 
Bus iness  School ;  Fate Foundat ion; 
Columbia Business School; Massachusetts 
Institute of Technology; United States 
International University, Nairobi amongst 
others.

I am happy to report back that in 2014, 
CWG fullled her CSR scheme in the six 
universities and also sponsored the Activ8 
youth camp; an annual convention aimed 
at inspiring and empowering young minds.

LOOKING FORWARD

While the r i sks  to growth do pose 
challenges, the Federal Government via its 
Economic Management Implementation 
Team had anticipated, discussed, and 
formulated policies with the view of a 
negative price shock on crude oil prices 
some of which had been rolled out by the 
Coordinating Minister of the Economy 
during her 2015 budget presentation; 
shoring up non-oil revenues by increasing 
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the tax base, while cutting back on 
government expenditures. The crude oil 
price shocks, the resulting declining 
government expenditure and its multiplier 
effects are likely to impact businesses as 
wel l .  Nevertheless ,  pr ior i t i zat ion of 
infrastructure such as roads and power are 
likely to mean that while growth may slow, it 
is likely to be stable. While growth is 
expected to peak at 6.79 percent in 2014, 
the economy is expected to grow by 5.5 
percent in 2015, as the non-oil sector of the 
economy is expected to drive growth. Over 
the 2015 through 2017 period, growth is 
expected to average 5.7 percent

Your company is seizing the opportunity to 
drive steadily towards her new vision of 
becoming the no. 1 IT Platform Service 
Provider in Africa by 2020, by focussing on 
her new lines of business under the CWG 2.0 
banner

As usual,  the accompl ishments we 
celebrate today would not have been 
p o s s i b l e  w i t h o u t  t h e  p a s s i o n a t e 
contribution exhibited by every CWG staff, 
customers and other stakeholders. I want to 
s p e c i a l l y  t h a n k  y o u  a l l  f o r  y o u r 
immeasurable contribution.

Finally, we acknowledge and hereby show 
appreciation to you our shareholders, for 
your continued belief and support in the 
institution we are building together. I am 
condent that the future is very bright for 
Computer Warehouse Group Plc.

Thank you and God bless you.

Chief Willie Belonwu
Chairman

Our key business 

objective for 

2014 was to 

Scale out the 

Subscription 

business in order 

to be the 

Number 1 IT 

Utility enabler in 

Africa by 2015,
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

We have signed a 

partnership with 

the Small and 

Medium Enterprises 

Development 

Agency of Nigeria 

(SMEDAN) to 

enable MSMEs 

take their 

businesses online. 

In 2014, our company continued in her bold transformation 

efforts to become a premier provider of information 

technology platforms that promote economic and social 

growth in Africa. We chose this path early this decade as a 

reaction to the changes happening in the technology 

space both locally and globally as well as a clear 

recognition of the dire need for drivers of economic growth 

in our country.

In our review last year, we pointed out that 'statistics show 

that there are about 17.7 million Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises (MSME) in Nigeria today. If we could help each of 

them to build sufcient capacity to employ one more 

person, we shall inadvertently create 17.7million additional 

jobs, enough to absorb all the 16 million unemployed youths 

with a generous surplus to spare. While this may seem like a 

dream whose reality is far-fetched, it is precisely what 

CWG2.0 is all about; the freedom to dream and the passion 

to execute. CWG2.0 denes the future direction of our great 

company.' 

In 2014, we continued on the CWG 2.0 track with notable 

partnerships and product launches. One of the notable 

product launches during the year on CWG's mobile banking 

platform – FinEdge, was The Diamond Yello Account 

(“DYA”). The DYA is a mobile banking application between 

Diamond Bank Plc and MTN, launched on the CWG's 

FinEdge platform, which has experienced an astronomical 

growth, providing banking solutions to more than 1.5 million 

subscribers within four months. This service is forecast to grow 

signicantly to reach a larger percentage of MTN 

approximately 60 million subscribers in 2015 and subsequent 

years. In the coming years, the Diamond Yello account 

franchise will be spreading to more banks. We are also 

engaging Microsoft to review the technology and 

architecture of FinEdge. The certication from Microsoft will 

be a strong endorsement for taking FinEdge global.

We have signed a partnership with the Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Agency of Nigeria (SMEDAN) to 

enable MSMEs take their businesses online. We have since 

commenced a program of national sensit isation 

campaigns to bring this service to the door steps of millions 

of MSMEs and in the process change the perception and 

Austin Okere
Group CEO
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reality of e-Commerce in Nigeria. In the 

coming years this foundation will enable us 

to sign up a signicant number of online 

shops which will provide these merchants 

with increased market access while 

assuring us of predictable subscription 

r e v e n u e .  P l e a s e  d o  v i s i t  o u r 

http://openshopen.ng site to open your 

own online web store today.

We were certied as a payment terminal 

services provider by CBN and have initiated 

partnerships with the Nigerian Interbank 

Settlement System (NIBSS Plc) and other 

banks to further deepen the penetration of 

cashless transactions. Our unique PoSApp 

framework is allowing us to quickly add 

value added services like lottery, inventory 

management ,  sa les  management , 

agency banking and others to the 

functionality of PoS terminals. From this 

vantage position, we are poised to 

become one of the major players in 

enabling electronic payments and cashless 

transactions.

2014 was also a difcult year plagued by 

uncertainty in the foreign exchange 

markets, insurgency and general insecurity 

as well as a precipitous drop in the price of 

oil. These conditions will extend through 

2015 and possibly longer. As in the previous 

year, the immense opportunity presented 

by Nigeria transforming from a Frontier 

Economy to an Emerging Market force also 

presented a key risk to local businesses: the 

risk that when the recurring problems of 

security and power supply have been 

tamed,  g lobal  Or ig inal  Equipment 

Manufacturers (OEMs) who were hitherto 

happy to operate at the periphery through 

Reseller Channels shall seek direct entry into 

the country, putting the businesses of scores 

of Reseller middlemen at risk.  We are 

responding to these challenges by 

improving our service delivery (~ 99% 

del ivery on SLAs), streamlining our 

operations and building out various 

platforms.

Distinguished shareholders, despite the 

various challenges that we faced, and the 

uncertainties that prevailed in the 

d o m e s t i c  a n d  g l o b a l  b u s i n e s s 

environment, we retained our enviable 

position as one of the foremost and most 

admired companies in Africa.  We were 

elected as a World Economic Forum (WEF) 

Global Growth Company and was also 

recognised by peers, the media and OEMs 

for outstanding performance.

We are condent that with your support 

we shall continue to delight our customers, 

maintain excellent service standards and 

report sustainably growing nancial results. 

Thank you.

Austin Okere

Group CEO

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONT’D
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The Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, 

requires the directors to prepare nancial statements for each nancial year that give a true 

and fair view of the state of nancial affairs of the company at the end of the year and of its 

prot or loss. The responsibilities include ensuring that the company:

a) keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the 
nancial position of the Company and comply with the requirements of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004;

b) establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and 
detect fraud and other irregularities; and

c) prepares its nancial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, and are consistently applied.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual consolidated nancial statements, which 

have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and 

prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting 

Standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board and the requirements of the 

Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, and 

Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, No 6, 2011.

The directors are of the opinion that the consolidated nancial statements give a true and 

fair view of the state of the nancial affairs of the group and of its prot or loss. The directors 

further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied 

upon in the preparation of nancial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal 

nancial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the group will not remain a 

going concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

--------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------
Austin Okere (Chief Executive Ofcer) Philip Obioha (Chief Operating Ofcer)
FRC/2014/IODN/00000003266 FRC/2014/IODN/00000003269

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

31 March 2015
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In accordance with the provisions of Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 
2004, the members of the Audit Committee of Computer Warehouse Group Plc (“the 
Company”) hereby report as follows: 

 We have exercised our statutory functions under Section 359 (6) of the Companies 
and Allied Matters Act, 2004 and acknowledge the cooperation of management 
and staff in the conduct of these responsibilities. 

 We are of the opinion that the accounting and reporting policies of the Company are 
in accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical practices and that the 
scope and planning of both the external and internal audits for the year ended 31 
December, 2014 were satisfactory and reinforce the Company's internal control 
systems. 

 We have deliberated with the External Auditors, who have conrmed that necessary 
cooperation was received from management in the course of their statutory audit 
and we are satised with management's responses to the External Auditor's 
recommendations on accounting and internal control matters and with the 
effectiveness of the Company's system of accounting and internal control.

Mr. Amaechi Patrick Onyema
Chairman, Audit Committee
30 March, 2015

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
TO THE MEMBERS OF COMPUTER 
WAREHOUSE GROUP PLC
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompany consolidated nancial statements of Computer 

Warehouse Group Plc and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement 

of nancial position as at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of prot or loss 

and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and 

consolidated statement of cash ows for the year then ended, and the notes 

comprising a summary of signicant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 

these nancial statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards, the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of 

the Federation of Nigeria 2004 and in compliance with the Financial Reporting Council 

Act, No 6, 2011, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 

enable the preparation of nancial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these nancial statements based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on 

Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the nancial 

statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing 

procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the nancial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the nancial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER 
OF COMPUTER WAREHOUSE GROUP PLC
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accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 

the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the nancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

OPINION 

In our opinion, the consolidated nancial statements present fairly, in all material 

respects, the nancial position of Computer Warehouse Group Plc as at 31 December 

2014, and its nancial performance and its cash ows for the year then ended in 

accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, provisions of the 

Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 

and in compliance with the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, No 6, 2011.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirement of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied 

Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, we conrm that:

I) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were  necessary for the purpose of our audit;

ii) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so 

far as appears from our examination  of those books.

iii) the Company's consolidated statement of nancial position and statement of 

prot or loss and other comprehensive income are in agreement with the books 

of account.

Yusuf Aliu, FCA/FRC/2014/ICAN/00000000138
For: Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria ………………………… 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER 

OF COMPUTER WAREHOUSE GROUP PLC CONT’D

31st March 2015
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THE BOARD EVALUATION REPORT

REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL CONSULTANTS ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF COMPUTER WAREHOUSE GROUP PLC (“CWG PLC”) FOR THE YEAR-
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014. 

DCSL Corporate Services Limited (DCSL) was engaged by Computer Warehouse 
Group Plc to carry out an appraisal of the Board's performance for the year-ended 
December 31, 2014. Being its inaugural Board appraisal, we undertook a detailed 
review of the Company's corporate and statutory documents, the Minutes of Board 
and Committee meetings, the policies currently in place and other ancillary 
documents made available to us, questionnaires administered as well as 
information derived from our interactions with the Board members and select 
members of the Executive Management team. We benchmarked the Company's 
corporate governance structures, policies and processes against the provisions of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Code of Corporate Governance 
2011 (“SEC Code”) as well as global Best Practices. 

In undertaking the appraisal, we considered seven (7) key corporate governance 
areas as follows: 

1. Board Structure and Composition 
2. Strategy and Planning 
3. Board Operations and Effectiveness 
4. Measuring and Monitoring of Performance 
5. Risk Management and Compliance 
6. Corporate Citizenship; and 
7. Transparency and Disclosure. 

The Board has a responsibility to put in place structures, policies and processes that 
will help guarantee the Company's growth and sustainability. As Consultants, our 
responsibility is to draw conclusions on the effectiveness of these structures, policies 
and processes based on our review of the Board's activities and performance during 
the year-ended December 2014 and as outlined in our letter of engagement dated 
20th January 2015. Following our review, we have provided the details of our 
ndings, highlighted areas of improvement, reviewed status of previous year 
recommendations and made recommendations aimed at further improving the 
performance of the Board of its oversight functions.
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At the conclusion of the evaluation exercise, we are of the opinion that the Board has 
substantially complied with the provisions of the Codes. The Board of CWG Plc is 
comprised of individuals possessing relevant skills and competencies and of an 
appropriate mix in terms of relevant experience. 

We however note the absence of a Succession Planning Framework for the Board in 
line with its role as outlined in Section 3.1(c) of the SEC Code and recommend that 
one be prepared and approved by the Board urgently. We recommend that the 
Board needs to be more involved in Strategy denition and monitoring. We observe 
that the Company's Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Framework are yet to be 
approved by the Board and recommended that they be considered and approved 
by the Board as soon as practicable. We also recommend that the Board should 
consider appointing a female Director to bring some gender diversity to the Board. 

Details of our key ndings and other recommendations are contained in our Report.

Yours Faithfully,
For: DCSL Corporate Services Limited

Bisi Adeyemi
Managing Director

THE BOARD EVALUATION REPORT CONT’D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

** All subsidiaries are 100% owned by the Group hence all the prots or losses and other 
comprehensive income belong to the owners of the company.

See notes to the nancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Signature Name  FRC. No.

………………………………… Austin Okere (Chief Executive Ofcer) FRC/2014/IODN/00000003266

………………………………… Philip Obioha (Director- Operations) FRC/2014/IODN/00000003269  

………………………………… Adeyanju Jelili (HOD Accounts) FRC/2014/ICAN/00000003668

See notes to the nancial statements 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY – THE COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY – THE GROUP

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Dividend per share in 2014:  2 kobo (8 kobo in 2013)

See notes to the nancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 
GROUP & COMPANY

See notes to the nancial statements

16,252,752
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1.      CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated nancial statements of 

Computer Warehouse Group Plc and its 

subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the 

year ended 31 December 2014 were 

authorised for issue in accordance with the 

approval of the board of directors. 

Computer Warehouse Group Plc (the 

Company) is a limited liability company 

incorporated and domiciled in Nigeria and 

became public by listing on 15 November 

2013. The registered ofce is located at 

Block 54A, Plot10, Adebayo Adebayo 

Doherty Road, off Admiralty Road, Lekki 

Phase 1, Lagos State in Nigeria.

The Group is principally engaged in the 

s u p p l y ,  i n s t a l l a t i o n ,  i n t e g r a t i o n , 

maintenance and support of computer 

equipment, e-payment hardware and 

ancillary equipment.

2.1     BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated nancial statements of 

the Group have been prepared in 

accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board 

( IASB) .  The conso l idated nancia l 

statements have been prepared on a 

historical cost basis, except for available-

for-sale nancial instruments that have 

been measured at  fa i r  value.  The 

consolidated nancial statements are also 

presented in Naira and all values are 

rounded to the nearest thousand (N000), 

except when otherwise indicated.

2.2     BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated nancial statements 

comprise the nancial statements of the 

Group and its subsidiaries as at 31 

December 2014. Subsidiaries are entities 

controlled by the Group. Subsidiaries are 

consolidated from the date of acquisition, 
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being the date on which the Group obtains 

control, and continue to be consolidated 

until the date when such control ceases. 

The nancial statements of the subsidiaries 

are prepared for the same reporting period 

as the parent company, using consistent 

accounting policies. Al l  intra-group 

balances, transactions, unrealised gains 

and losses resulting from intra-group 

transactions and dividends are eliminated 

in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a 

subsidiary, without a loss of control, is 

accounted for as an equity transaction. If 

the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including 

goodwill) and liabilities of the 

subsidiary

Derecognises the carrying amount 

of any non-controlling interest

Derecognises  the cumulat ive 

translation differences, recorded in 

equity

Recognises the fair value of the 

consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any 

investment retained

Recognises any surplus or decit in 

prot or loss

Reclassies the parent's share of 

components previously recognised 

in other comprehensive income to 

prot or loss or retained earnings, as 

appropriate.

2 . 3  S U M M A R Y  O F  S I G N I F I C A N T 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the signicant accounting 

policies applied by the Group in preparing 

its nancial statements:

2.3.1 BUS INESS  COMBINAT IONS AND  

GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for 

using the acquisition method. The cost of an 
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acquisition is measured as the aggregate 

of the consideration transferred, measured 

at the fair value on the date of acquisition. 

All the Group's subsidiaries are wholly 

owned and therefore the issue of Non-

controlling interest does not arise. When the 

Group acquires a business, it assesses the 

nancial assets and liabilities assumed for 

appropriate classication and designation 

in accordance with the contractual terms, 

economic circumstances and pertinent 

conditions as at the acquisition date. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being 

the excess of the aggregate of the 

consideration transferred over the fair 

value of net identiable assets acquired 

and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of 

the net assets acquired is in excess of the 

aggregate consideration transferred, the 

gain is recognised in prot and loss 

immediately.

After init ial recognit ion, goodwil l  is 

measured at cost less any accumulated 

impairment losses. For the purpose of 

impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a 

bus iness  combinat ion i s ,  f rom the 

acquisition date, allocated to each of the 

Group's Cash Generating Units (CGU) that 

are expected to benet  f rom the 

combination, irrespective of whether other 

assets or liabilities of the acquiree are 

assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a 

cash-generating unit and part of the 

operation within that unit is disposed of, the 

goodwill associated with the operation 

disposed of is included in the carrying 

a m o u n t  o f  t h e  o p e r a t i o n  w h e n 

determining the gain or loss on disposal of 

the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this 

circumstance is measured based on the 

relative values of the operation disposed of 

and the portion of the cash-generating unit 

retained.

2.3.2    FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Group's  consol idated nancial 

statements are presented in Naira, which is 

also the parent company's functional 

currency. For each entity the Group 

determines the functional currency and 

items included in the nancial statements of 

each entity are measured using that 

functional currency. The Group uses the 

direct method of consolidation and on 

disposal of a foreign operation; the gain or 

loss that is reclassied to prot or loss reects 

the amount that arises from using this 

method.

I) TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Transactions in foreign currencies are 

initially recorded by the Group's entities at 

their respective functional currency spot 

rates at the date the transaction rst 

qualies for recognition. Monetary assets 

and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated at the functional 

currency spot rates of exchange at the 

reporting date. Differences arising on 

settlement or translation of monetary items 

are recognised in prot or loss.  Non-

monetary items that are measured in terms 

of historical cost in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the 

dates of the initial transactions. 

Non-monetary items measured at fair value 

in a foreign currency are translated using 

the exchange rates at the date when the 

fair value is determined. The gain or loss 

arising on translation of non-monetary items 

measured at fair value is treated in line with 

the recognition of gain or loss on change in 

fair value of the item (i.e., translation 

differences on items whose fair value gain 

or loss is recognised in other comprehensive 

income or prot or loss are also recognised 

in other comprehensive income or prot or 

loss, respectively). 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a 
foreign operation and any fair value 
adjustments to the carrying amounts of 
assets and l iabi l i t ies aris ing on the 
acquisition are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operation and 
translated at the spot rate of exchange at 
the reporting date. 

II)    FOREIGN OPERATIONS

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities 

of foreign operations are translated into 

Naira at the rate of exchange prevailing at 

the reporting date and their statement of 

comprehensive income are translated at 

exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 

t h e  t r a n s a c t i o n s .  T h e  e x c h a n g e 

differences arising on translation for 

consolidation are recognised in other 

comprehensive income. On disposal of a 

foreign operation, the component of other 

comprehensive income relating to that 

particular foreign operation is recognised 

in prot or loss.

2.3.3 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 

is probable that the economic benets will 

ow to the Group and the revenue can be 

reliably measured, regardless of when the 

payment is being made. Revenue is 

measured at the fai r  value of the 

consideration received or receivable, 

taking into account contractually dened 

terms of payment and excluding taxes or 

duty. The Group assesses its revenue 

arrangements against specic criteria to 

determine if it is acting as principal or 

agent. The specic recognition criteria 

described below must also be met before 

revenue is recognised. The group also 

separate out the revenue from the sales of 

goods for hardware and software and form 

service contract and determines the 

recogni t ion cr i te r ia  for  these two 

separately.

SALE OF GOODS

Revenue from the IT infrastructure services 

such as hardware devices and accessories 

is recognised when the signicant risks and 

rewards of ownership of the items have 

passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of 

the items.

RENDERING OF SERVICES

R e v e n u e  f r o m  t h e  p r o v i s i o n  o f 

communication services (maintenance, 

support services, communication and 

integration, software licenses etc) is 

recognised by reference to the stage of 

completion. Stage of completion is 

measured by reference to data and service 

usage. When the contract outcome 

cannot be measured reliably, revenue is 

recognised only to the extent that the 

expenses incurred are eligible to be 

recovered.

COMMISSIONS

When the Group acts in the capacity of an 
agent rather than as the principal in a 
transaction, the revenue recognised is the 
net amount of commission made by the 
Group. 

INTEREST INCOME

For all nancial instruments measured at 
amortised cost and interest bearing 
nancial assets classied as available for 
sale, interest income is recorded using the 
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate 
that exactly discounts the estimated future 
cash payments or receipts over the 
expected life of the nancial instrument or a 
shorter period, where appropriate, to the 
net carrying amount of the nancial asset or 
liability. Interest income is included in 
nance income in prot and loss. 

DEFERRED REVENUE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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Deferred revenue is a liability as of the 
balance sheet date related to revenue 
producing activity for which revenue has 
not yet been recognized. The deferred 
revenue represents revenue received in 
advance in respect of long term service 
contract. Deferred revenue is subsequently 
recognised in the period that the service is 
delivered.

2.3.4 TAXES

CURRENT INCOME TAX

Current income tax and education tax for 

the current period are measured at the 

amount expected to be recovered from or 

paid to the taxation authorities. The tax 

rates and tax laws used to compute the 

amount are those that are enacted or 

substantively enacted, at the reporting 

date in the countries where the Group 

operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items 

recognised directly in equity or other 

comprehensive income is recognised in 

equity or other comprehensive income, 

respectively and not in the prot and loss. 

Management periodically evaluates 

positions taken in the tax returns with 

respect to situations in which applicable tax 

regulations are subject to interpretation 

a n d  e s t a b l i s h e s  p r o v i s i o n s  w h e r e 

appropriate.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is provided using the liability 

method on temporary  d i f fe rences 

between the tax bases of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts for 

nancial  report ing purposes at the 

reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 

taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from 

the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset 

or liability in a transaction that is not a 

business combination and, at the time of 

the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting prot nor taxable prot or loss.

In respect of taxable temporary differences 

associated with investments in subsidiaries, 

when the timing of the reversal of the 

temporary differences can be controlled 

and it is probable that the temporary 

d i f ferences wi l l  not  reverse in  the 

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all 

deductible temporary differences, the 

carry forward of unused tax credits and any 

unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are 

recognised to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable prot will be available against 

w h i c h  t h e  d e d u c t i b l e  t e m p o r a r y 

differences, and the carry forward of 

unused tax credits and unused tax losses 

can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the 

deductible temporary difference arises 

from the initial recognition of an asset or 

liability in a transaction that is not a business 

combination and, at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither the accounting 

prot nor taxable prot or loss In respect of 

deduct ib le  temporary  d i f fe rences 

associated with investments in subsidiaries, 

deferred tax assets are recognised only to 

the extent that it is probable that the 

temporary differences will reverse in the 

foreseeable future and taxable prot will be 

available against which the temporary 

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 

is reviewed at each reporting date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that sufcient taxable prot will 

be available to allow all or part of the 

defe r red  tax  as set  to  be  u t i l i sed . 
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Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 

reassessed at each reporting date and are 

recognised to the extent that it has 

become probable that future taxable 

prots will allow the deferred tax asset to be 

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

measured at the tax rates that are 

expected to apply in the year when the 

asset is realised or the liability is settled, 

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted at 

the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to 

items recognised outside prot or loss is 

recognised outside prot or loss. Deferred 

tax items are recognised in correlation to 

the underlying transaction either in other 

comprehensive income or directly in 

equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 

liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable 

right exists to set off current tax assets 

against current tax liabilities and the 

deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 

entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benets acquired as part of a business 

combination, but not satisfying the criteria 

for separate recognition at that date, are 

recognised subsequently if new information 

about facts and circumstances change. 

The adjustment is either treated as a 

reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not 

exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during 

the measurement period or recognised in 

prot or loss.

2.3.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated 

at cost, net of accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Such cost includes the cost of replacing 

part of the property, plant and equipment 

and borrowing costs  for  long-term 

construction projects if the recognition 

criteria are met. When signicant parts of 

property, plant and equipment are 

required to be replaced at intervals, the 

Group recognises such parts as individual 

assets with specic useful l ives and 

depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, 

when a major inspection is performed, its 

cost is recognised in the carrying amount of 

the plant and equipment as a replacement 

if the recognition criteria are satised. All 

other repair and maintenance costs are 

recognised in prot and loss as incurred. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line 

basis over the estimated useful lives of the 

components of each item of  Property plant 

and equipment as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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An item of property, plant and equipment 

and any signicant part initially recognised 

is derecognised upon disposal or when no 

future economic benets are expected 

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss 

arising on de-recognition of the asset 

(calculated as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount of the asset) is included in prot 

and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful l ives and 

methods of depreciation of each item of 

property, plant and equipment are 

reviewed at each nancial year end and 

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.3.6 LEASES

The  dete rminat ion  o f  whether  an 

arrangement is, or contains, a lease is 

b a s e d  o n  t h e  s u b s t a n c e  o f  t h e 

arrangement at the inception date. The 

arrangement is assessed for whether 

fullment of the arrangement is dependent 

on the use of a specic asset or assets or the 

arrangement conveys a right to use the 

asset or assets, even if that right is not 

explicitly specied in an arrangement.

 

GROUP AS A LESSEE 

Finance leases that transfer to the Group 

substantially all of the risks and benets 

incidental to ownership of  the leased item, 

are capitalised at the commencement of 

the lease at the fair value of the leased 

property or,  if lower, at the present value of 

the minimum lease payments. Lease 

payments are apportioned between 

nance charges and reduction of the lease 

liability so as to achieve a constant rate of 

interest on the remaining balance of the 

liability. Finance charges are recognised in 

nance costs in the prot or loss. 

A leased asset is depreciated over the 

useful life of the asset. However, if there is no 

reasonable certainty that the Group will 

obtain ownership by the end of the lease 

term, the asset is depreciated over the 

shorter of the estimated useful life of the 

asset and the lease term. Operating lease 

payments are recognised as an operating 

expense in the prot or loss on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term.  

Contingent rents are recognised as 

revenue in the period in which they are 

earned.

2.3.7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are 

measured on initial recognition at cost. The 

cost of intangible assets acquired in a 

business combination is their fair value at 

the date of acquisition. Following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at 

cost less any accumulated amortisation 

and accumulated impairment losses. 

Internally generated intangible assets, 

excluding capitalised development costs, 

are not capitalised and expenditure is 

reected in prot and loss in the period in 

which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are 

assessed as either nite or indenite.

Intangible assets with nite lives are 

amortised over the useful economic life 

and assessed for impairment whenever 

there is an indication that the intangible 

asset may be impaired. The amortisation 

period and the amortisation method for an 

intangible asset with a nite useful life are 

reviewed at least at the end of each 

reporting period.

Changes in the expected useful life or the 

expected pattern of consumption of future 

economic benets embodied in the assets 

are considered to modify the amortisation 

period or method, as appropriate, and are 

t reated as changes in account ing 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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estimates. The amortisation expense on 

intangible assets with nite l ives i s 

recognised in the prot and loss as the 

expense category that is consistent with the 

function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indenite useful lives 

are not amortised, but are tested for 

impairment annually, either individually or 

at the cash-generating unit level. The 

assessment of indenite life is reviewed 

annually to determine whether the 

indenite life continues to be supportable. If 

not, the change in useful life from indenite 

to nite is made on a prospective basis.

As at 31 December 2014, the group did not 

have any indenite intangible assets.

LICENSES

Licences represent the cost of an operating 

l icence obtained from the Nigerian 

Communication Commission (NCC) for a 

period of 10 years. Upon expiration of the 

license terms, the group may renew the 

licence with NCC. Licence fees are 

amortised over a period of 10 years.

2.3.8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Group recognises nancial assets and 

nancial liabilities on the Group's statement 

of nancial position when it becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. The Group determines the 

classication of its nancial assets and 

liabilities at initial recognition. All nancial 

assets and liabilities are recognised initially 

at fair value plus directly attributable 

transaction costs, except for nancial 

assets and liabilities classied as fair value 

through prot or loss.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

(I) NATURE AND MEASUREMENT

The Group's nancial assets include 

Available for sale nancial assets, Loans 

and receivables ,  T rade and other 

receivables, and Cash and short-term 

deposits. After initial measurement, the 

subsequent measurement of nancial 

assets depends on their classication as 

follows:

 F I N A N C I A L  A S S E T S  - S U B S E Q U E N T   

MEASUREMENT 

 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables are non-derivative 

nancial assets with xed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active 

market. After initial measurement, loans 

and receivables  are subsequent ly 

measured at amortised cost using the 

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method, less 

impairment. Amortised cost is calculated 

by taking into account any discount or 

premium on acquisition and fees or costs 

that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included in nance/interest 

income in the statement of comprehensive 

income. Gains and losses are recognised in 

prot or loss when the investments are 

derecognised or impaired, as well as 

through the amortisation process.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are recognised initially at 

fair value as the invoice amount and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

A provision for impairment of trade 

receivables is established when there is 

objective evidence that the Group will not 

be able to collect all amounts due 

according to the or ig inal  terms of 

receivables. Signicant nancial difculties 

of the debtor and default or delinquency in 

payments are considered indicators that 

the trade receivable is impaired. The Group 

deploys age analysis tools to track the 

payment pattern of customers. The 

carrying amount of trade receivable is 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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reduced through the use of an allowance 

account. When trade receivables are 

uncollectible, it is written off as bad debts in 

administrative expenses in prot or loss. 

Subsequent recover ies of  amounts 

previously written off are included as 'Bad 

debt recoveries' in other income in the 

statement of comprehensive income.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale nancial assets include 

equity investments. Equity investments 

classied as available for sale are those that 

are neither classied as held for trading nor 

designated at fair value through prot or 

loss. After initial measurement, available-

for-sale nancial assets are subsequently 

measured at fair value with unrealised 

gains or losses recognised in other 

comprehensive income in the available-

for-sale reserve until the investment is 

de recogn i sed ,  a t  wh ich  t ime the 

cumulative gain or loss is recognised in 

other operating income, or the investment 

is determined to be impaired, when the 

cumulative loss is reclassied from the 

available-for sale reserve to prot and loss.

ii. DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL 

ASSETS 

The Group derecognizes a nancial asset 

only and only if the Group's contractual 

rights to the cash ows from the asset 

expires or the Group has transferred its 

rights to receive cash ows from the asset or 

has assumed an obligation to pay the 

received cash ows in full without material 

delay to a third party under a 'pass-

through' arrangement; and either 
(a) t h e  G r o u p  h a s  t r a n s f e r r e d 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to 

receive cash ows from an asset, it 

evaluates if and to what extent it has 

retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all of the risks and rewards of 

the asset, nor transferred control of the 

asset, the asset is recognised to the extent 

of the Group's continuing involvement in 

the asset. In that case, the Group also 

recognises an associated liability. The 

transferred asset and the associated liability 

are measured on a basis that reects the 

rights and obligations that the Group has 

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form 

of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 

measured at the lower of the original 

carrying amount of the asset and the 

maximum amount of consideration that the 

Group could be required to repay.

III IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, 

whether there is objective evidence that a 

nancial asset or a group of nancial assets 

is impaired. 

A nancial asset or a group of nancial 

assets is deemed to be impaired if there is 

objective evidence of impairment as a 

result of one or more events that has 

occurred since the initial recognition of the 

asset and that loss event has an impact on 

the estimated future cash ows of the 

nancial asset or the group of nancial 

assets that can be reliably estimated. 

Evidence of impairment may include 

indications that the debtors or a group of 

debtors is experiencing signicant nancial 

difculty, default or delinquency in interest 

or principal payments, the probability that 

they will enter bankruptcy or other nancial 

reorganisation and observable data 

indicating that there is a measurable 

decrease in the estimated future cash 
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2 0 1 4 | A N N U A L R E P O R T & F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S 4 9

ows, such as changes in arrears or 

economic conditions that correlate with 

defaults.

F I N A N C I A L  A S S E T S  C A R R I E D  A T  

AMORTISED COST

For nancial assets carried at amortised 

cost, the Group rst assesses whether 

objective evidence of impairment exists 

individually for nancial assets that are 

individually signicant, or collectively for 

nancial assets that are not individually 

signicant. If the Group determines that no 

objective evidence of impairment exists for 

an individually assessed nancial asset, 

whether signicant or not, it includes the 

asset in a group of nancial assets with 

similar credit risk characteristics and 

collectively assesses them for impairment. 

Assets that are individually assessed for 

impairment and for which an impairment 

loss is, or continues to be, recognised are 

not included in a collective assessment of 

impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an 

impairment loss has been incurred, the 

amount of the loss is measured as the 

difference between the asset's carrying 

amount  and the present  value of 

estimated future cash ows (excluding 

future expected credit losses that have not 

yet been incurred). The present value of 

the est imated future cash ows i s 

discounted at the nancial asset's original 

ef fect ive interest  rate.  Loans and 

receivables together with the associated 

allowance are written off when there is no 

realistic prospect of future recovery. If in a 

subsequent year, the amount of the 

estimated impairment loss increases or 

decreases because of an event occurring 

after the impairment was recognised, the 

previously recognised impairment loss is 

increased or reduced by adjusting the 

allowance account. If a write-off is later 

recovered, the recovery is recognised as 

other income in the prot or loss.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

For available-for-sale nancial assets, the 

Group assesses at each reporting date 

whether there is objective evidence that 

an assets or a group of nancial assets is 

impaired. In the case of equity instruments 

classied as available-for-sale, objective 

evidence would include a signicant or 

prolonged decline in the fair value of the 

investment below its cost. 'Signicant' is 

evaluated against the original cost of the 

investment and 'prolonged' against the 

period in which the fair value has been 

below its original cost. When there is 

evidence of impairment, the cumulative 

loss – measured as the difference between 

the acquisition cost and the current fair 

value, less any impairment loss on that 

investment previously recognised in prot 

and los s  –  i s  removed f rom other 

comprehensive income and recognised in 

prot and loss. Impairment losses on equity 

instruments are not reversed through prot 

or loss; increases in their fair value after 

impairment are recognised directly in other 

comprehensive income.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(I) NATURE AND MEASUREMENT

The company's nancial liabilities include 

trade payables and interest bearing loans 

and borrowings and convertible loan stock. 

All nancial liabilities are recognized initially 

at fair value plus, in the case of loans and 

b o r r o w i n g s ,  d i r e c t l y  a t t r i b u t a b l e 

t ransact ion costs .  The subsequent 

measurement of nancial assets depends 

on their classication as follows:

F INANCIAL L IABIL I T IES-SUBSEQUENT 

MEASUREMENT LOANS AND BORROWINGS

After initial recognition, interest bearing 
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loans and borrowings are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the EIR 

method. Gains and losses are recognised in 

prot or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the EIR 

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 

account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an 

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 

is included as nance costs in prot and loss.

F INANCIAL  L IABIL I T IES-SUBSEQUENT 

MEASUREMENT TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are obligations to pay for 

goods or services that have been acquired 

in the ordinary course of business from 

suppliers. Trade payables are classied as 

current liabilities if payment is due within 

one year (or in the normal operating cycle 

of the business, if longer). If not, they are 

presented as non-current liabilities. Trade 

and other payables are recognised initially 

at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN STOCKS

At inception, convertible loan stocks are 

separated into l iabi l i ty  and equity 

components based on the terms of the 

contract. For the purpose of the separation, 

the fair value of the liability component is 

determined on the date of issuance using a 

market rate for an equivalent non-

convertible bond. This amount is classied 

as a nancial l iabi l i ty measured at 

amortised cost (net of transaction costs) 

until it is extinguished on conversion or 

redempt ion.  The remainder  of  the 

proceeds (thus after deducting the fair 

value of the liability) is allocated to the 

conversion option that is recognised and 

included in equity.  The carrying amount of 

the conversion option is not remeasured in 

subsequent years. Transaction costs are 

apportioned between the liability and 

equity components of the convertible loan 

stock based on the allocation of proceeds 

to the liability and equity components 

when the  in s t ruments  a re  in i t ia l l y 

recognised.

(ii) DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL 

LIABILITIES

A nancial liability is derecognised when 

the obl igation under the l iabi l i ty is 

discharged or cancelled, or expires. When 

an existing nancial liability is replaced by 

another  f rom the same lender  on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of 

an existing l iabil ity are substantially 

m o d i  e d ,  s u c h  a n  e x c h a n g e  o r 

m o d i  c a t i o n  i s  t r e a t e d  a s  t h e 

derecognition of the original liability and 

the recognition of a new liability. The 

difference in the respective carrying 

amounts is recognised in prot and loss.

2.3 .8 .1  OFF-SETT ING OF F INANCIAL 

INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and nancial liabilities are 

offset and the net amount is reported in the 

consolidated statement of nancial 

position if there is a currently enforceable 

legal right to offset the recognised amounts 

and there is an intention to settle on a net 

basis, to realise the assets and settle the 

liabilities simultaneously. 

2 .3 .8 .2  FA IR  VALUE  OF  F INANCIAL 

INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of nancial instruments that 

are traded in active markets at each 

reporting date is determined by reference 

to quoted market prices or dealer price 

quotations (bid price for long positions and 

ask price for short positions), without any 

deduction for transaction costs. For 

nancial instruments not traded in an 

active market, the fair value is determined 
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using appropriate valuation techniques. 

Such techniques may include:

· the market approach;

· the cost approach and;

· the income approach.

2.3.9 INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost 

and net realisable value. Costs incurred in 

bringing each product to its present 

location and conditions are accounted for 

as follows:

· Raw materials: Purchase cost on a rst 

in, rst out basis.

· Net realisable value is the estimated 

selling price in the ordinary course of 

business, less estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs 

necessary to make the sale.

2.3.9 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL 

ASSETS

The Group assesses at each reporting date 

whether there is an indication that an asset 

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or 

when annual impairment testing for an 

asset is required, the Group estimates the 

asset's recoverable amount. An asset's 

recoverable amount is the higher of an 

asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair 

value less costs to sell and its value in use. It is 

determined for an individual asset, unless 

the asset does not generate cash inows 

that are largely independent of those from 

other assets or groups of assets. Where the 

carrying amount of an asset or CGU 

exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 

is considered impaired and is written down 

to its recoverable amount. In assessing 

value in use, the estimated future cash ows 

are discounted to their present value using 

a pre-tax discount rate that reects current 

market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specic to the asset. In 

determining fair value less costs to sell, an 

appropriate valuation model is used. These 

calculations are corroborated by valuation 

multiples, or other available fair value 

indicators. 

 

The Group bases its impairment calculation 

on detailed budgets and forecasts which 

are prepared separately for each of the 

Group's CGU to which the individual assets 

are allocated. These budgets and forecast 

calculations are generally covering a 

period of ve years. For longer periods, a 

long-term growth rate is calculated and 

applied to project future cash ows after 

the fth year. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, 

including impairment on inventories, are 

recognised in prot and loss in those 

expense categories consistent with the 

function of the impaired asset

For  as set s  exc lud ing goodwi l l ,  an 

assessment is made at each reporting date 

as to whether there is any indication that 

previously recognised impairment losses 

may no longer  ex i s t  o r  may have 

decreased. If such indication exists, the 

Group estimates the asset's or CGU's 

recoverable amount .  A prev ious ly 

recognised impairment loss is reversed only 

if  there has been a change in the 

assumptions used to determine the asset's 

recoverable amount s ince the last 

impairment loss was recognised. The 

reversal is limited so that the carrying 

amount of the asset does not exceed its 

recoverable amount, nor exceed the 

carrying amount that would have been 

determined, net of depreciation, had no 

impairment loss been recognised for the 

asset in prior years. Such reversal is 

recognised in prot and loss. 

The following criteria are also applied in 

assessing impairment of specic assets:
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GOODWILL

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually 

at 31 December and when circumstances 

indicate that the carrying value may be 

impaired. Impairment is determined for 

goodwill by assessing the recoverable 

amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to 

which the goodwill relates. When the 

recoverable amount of the CGU is less than 

its carrying amount, an impairment loss is 

recognised. Impairment losses relating to 

goodwill cannot be reversed in future 

periods.

2.3.10  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and short-term deposits in the 

statement of nancial position comprise 

cash at banks and on hand and short-term 

deposits with a maturity of three months or 

less from the date of acquisition. For the 

purpose of the of cash ows, cash and cash 

equivalents consist of cash and short-term 

deposi ts  as dened above, net of 

outstanding bank overdrafts.

2.3.11 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Group recognises dividends when the 

distribution is authorised and is no longer at 

the discretion of the Group.

2.3.12  PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group 

has a present obl igat ion ( legal  or 

constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that an outow of resources 

embodying economic benets will be 

required to settle the obligation and a 

reliable estimate can be made of the 

amount of the obligation. When the Group 

expects some or all of a provision to be 

reimbursed, for example, under an 

insurance contract, the reimbursement is 

recognised as a separate asset, but only 

when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 

The expense relating to a provision is 

presented in prot and loss net of any 

reimbursement.

2.3.13  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benets are all forms of benets 

given in exchange for services rendered by 

employees. These are classied as:

(a) Short-term employee benets -   

benets due to be settled within 12 

months after the end of the period in 

which the employees rendered the 

related services

(b) Pos t -employment  benets  a re 

benets payable after the completion 

of employment. Such plans (or funds) 

may be either dened contribution 

funds or dened benet funds.

© Termination benets are employee 

benets payable as a result of either 

the Group's decision to terminate an 

employee's employment before 

normal ret i rement date,  or  an 

employee's decision to accept 

voluntary redundancy in exchange 

for those benets.

SHORT-TERM BENEFITS

The cost of all short-term employee 

benets, such as salaries, prot sharing 

arrangements, employee entitlements to 

leave pay, bonuses, medical aid and other 

contributions, are recognised during the 

period in which the employee renders the 

related service. The Group recognises the 

expected cost of bonuses only when the 

Group has a present legal or constructive 

obligation to make such payment and a 

reliable estimate can be made. During the 

year the Group companies contributed to 

employee benets in the fol lowing 

categories: - remuneration in the form of 

salaries, wages and bonuses.
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POST-EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFIT 

FUNDS

In line with statutory pension/retirements 

laws, the Group and its employees 

contribute to statutory retirement benets 

plans for the benets of its qualifying staff. 

The Funds which are dened contribution 

plans are independently administered with 

no obligations on the Group other than the 

dened contribution as a percentage of 

employees' qualifying remunerations. Both 

employees' and the group's share of the 

contributions are charged as staff cost in 

the administrative expenses in the prot 

and loss when the employee renders the 

service.  

Other long-term benets Other long-term 

bene t s  a re  recogn i sed  when  an 

obligation arises. The Group had no other 

long-term benet commitments during the 

year.

TERMINATION BENEFITS

The Group recognises termination benets 

as a liability and an expense when it is 

demonstrably committed to either:

(a) terminate the employment of an   

employee or group of employees 

before the normal retirement date; or

(b) provide termination benets as a result 

o f  an  o f fe r  made in  o rde r  to 

encourage voluntary redundancy.

Termination benets are recognised as 

expense in the period they arise. The Group 

had no termination benet commitments 

during the year.

2.3.15  SEGMENT REPORTING

The  Group  ident i es  segment s  a s 

components of the Group that engage in 

business activities from which revenues are 

earned and expenses incurred. The 

segments' operating results are regularly 

reviewed by the entity's chief operating 

decision maker to make decisions about 

resources to be allocated to each segment 

and assess its performance, and for which 

discrete nancial information is available.  

The identication of operating segments is 

on the basis of internal reports that are 

regularly reviewed by the entity's chief 

operating decision maker in order to 

allocate resources to the segment and 

assess its performance. The Group has 

identied the Chief Executive Ofcer as the 

chief operating decision maker.

MEASUREMENT OF SEGMENT INFORMATION

The amount reported for each operating 

segment is based on the measure reported 

to the chief operating decision maker for 

the purposes of allocating resources to the 

segment and assessing its performance. 

3. S I G N I F I C A N T  A C C O U N T I N G 

J U D G E M E N T S ,  E S T I M A T E S  A N D 

ASSUMPTIONS

T h e  p r e p a r a t i o n  o f  t h e  G r o u p ' s 

consolidated nancial statements requires 

management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 

a s s e t s  a n d  l i a b i l i t i e s ,  a n d  t h e 

accompanying disclosures, and the 

disc losure of  cont ingent l iabi l i t ies . 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and 

estimates could result in outcomes that 

require a material adjustment to the 

carrying amount of the asset or liability 

affected in future periods.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group's 

accounting policies, management has 

made the following judgements, which 

have the most signicant effect on the 

amounts recognised in the consolidated 

nancial statements:
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TAXES

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for      

unused tax losses to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable prot wil l be 

available against which the losses can be 

u t i l i s e d .  S i g n i  c a n t  m a n a g e m e n t 

judgement is required to determine the 

amount of deferred tax assets that can be 

recognised, based upon the likely timing 

and the level of future taxable prots 

together with future tax planning strategies.

 GOING CONCERN

The Group's management has made an 

assessment of its ability to continue as a 

going concern and is satised that it has the 

resources to continue in business for the 

f o r e s e e a b l e  f u t u r e .  F u r t h e r m o r e , 

management is not aware of any material 

uncertainties that may cast signicant 

doubt upon the Group's ability to continue 

as a going concern. 

Therefore, the nancial statements 

continue to be prepared on the going 

concern basis.

 RE-ASSESSMENT OF USEFUL LIVES AND 

RESIDUAL VALUES

The Group carries its xed assets at cost in 

the statement of nancial position. The 

annual review of the useful lives and 

residual value of PPE result in the use of 

signicant management judgements.

 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The Group subjects a number of its assets to 

impairment reviews annually. Key inputs 

into these calculations include estimates of 

cash ow amount and timing, cash 

generating unit, discounting factors, which 

involve the use of signicant amount of 

management judgement.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future 

and other key sources of estimation 

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have 

a signicant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities within the next nancial 

year, are described below. The Group 

based its assumptions and estimates on 

p a r a m e t e r s  a v a i l a b l e  w h e n  t h e 

consolidated nancial statements were 

prepared. Existing circumstances and 

assumptions about future developments, 

however, may change due to market 

changes or circumstances arising beyond 

the control of the Group. Such changes are 

reected in the assumptions when they 

occur.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Impairment exists when the carrying value 

of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds 

its recoverable amount, which is the higher 

of its fair value less costs to sell and its value 

in use. The fair value less costs to sell 

calculation is based on available data from 

binding sales transactions, conducted at 

arm's length for similar assets or observable 

market prices less incremental costs for 

disposing of the asset. The value in use 

calculation is based on a discounted cash 

ow model. The cash ows are derived from 

the budget for the next ve years and do 

not include restructuring activities that the 

Group is not yet committed to or signicant 

future investments that will enhance the 

asset's performance of the CGU being 

tested. The recoverable amount is most 

sensitive to the discount rate used for the 

discounted cash ow model as well as the 

expected future cash inows and the 

growth rate used for extrapolat ion 

purposes. The key assumptions used to 

determine the recoverable amount for the 

different CGUs are disclosed and further 

explained in Note 13.
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4. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET 

EFFECTIVE

Standards issued but not yet effective up to 

the date of issuance of the company's 

nancial statements are listed below. This 

listing is of standards and interpretations 

issued, which the company reasonably 

expects to be applicable at a future date. 

The company intends to adopt those 

standards when they become effective.

IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In July 2014, the IASB issued the nal version 

of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reects 

all phases of the nancial instruments 

project and replaces IAS 39 Financial 

I n s t r u m e n t s :  R e c o g n i t i o n  a n d 

Measurement and all previous versions of 

IFRS 9. The standard introduces new 

requirements for  c lass icat ion and 

measurement, impairment, and hedge 

accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2018, with early application permitted. 

Retrospective application is required, but 

c o m p a r a t i v e  i n f o r m a t i o n  i s  n o t 

compulsory. Early application of previous 

versions of IFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is 

permitted if the date of initial application is 

before 1 February 2015. The Group is still 

assessing the impact of applying this 

standard.

IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 

CUSTOMERS

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and 

establishes a new ve-step model that will 

apply to revenue arising from contracts 

with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is 

recognised at an amount that reects the 

consideration to which an entity expects to 

be entitled in exchange for transferring 

goods or services to a customer. 

The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more 

structured approach to measuring and 

recognizing revenue. The new revenue 

standard is applicable to all entities and will 

supersede all current revenue recognition 

requirements under IFRS. Either a full or 

modied retrospective application is 

required for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2017 with early adoption 

permitted. The standard will impact on the 

revenue recognition of the Group.
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The following are standards that are issued but not yet effective. These will be adopted as 

they become effective but are not expected to impact the company or group.
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products 

and services. The strategic business units offer different products and services, and are 

managed separately because they require different technology and marketing strategies. For 

each of the strategic business units, the Group's CEO reviews internal management reports on 

at least a quarterly basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group's 

reportable segments:

· The IT infrastructure segment, which supplies, installs and supports Computer hardware, 

operating and middle ware systems, Automated Teller Machines “ATM” etc. 

· The Software segment, which provides services in software deployment, implementation 

and supports, systems analysis, design and implementation and smartcard applications. 

The segment also provides training to their clients on the systems offered and other off-the-

shelf packages. 

· The Network and communications equipment segment, which specializes in VSAT and 

Fibre Connectivity, Metropolitan Area Networks, Wide Area Networks, Local Area 

Networks, and Systems Integration and provides provision of network communications 

support to clients.

· The Managed and support service segment provides internal and external clients 

managed /outsourcing services and provides related accessories for equipment and 

service maintenance.

Segment gross prot is used to measure performance as management believes that such 

information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other 

entities that operate within these industries.  However, nancing (including nance costs and 

nance income) income taxes and assets and liabilities are managed on a group basis and are 

not allocated to operating segments. There are no transfers between the operating segments 

hence there are no transfer prices set for any transactions that may arise. The segments 

managers are assessed based on the performance on sales and cost of sales. They do not have 

control over the assets and liabilities. Segments results are as shown below:

SEGMENT RESULTS
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Operating assets and liabilities are controlled at group level and information on this is 

not readily available as they are not considered by the chief operating decision maker 

in resource allocation decisions.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS
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As at 31 December 2014 the receivables from MTN and UBA are N568 
million and N200 million respectively

7. OTHER INCOME

8.          ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
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Other expenses relates to security services, ofce cleaning expenses, bandwidth 

subscription for internet, ITF and NSITF, pre bid contract expenses, awards and 

conferences expenses incurred during the year.  

9.   CURRENCY DEVALUATION LOSS

Given the decline in crude oil prices during the year, the impact of capital ight out of Nigeria 

due to stronger economies in the West as well as the scheduled upcoming presidential 

elections, the naira was under immense pressure which led to the devaluation of the 

currency. As part of CBN's measures to reduce the pressure on naira, a circular was issued 

which excluded ICT companies from participating in RDAS. This policy led to re-

measurement of CWG's Dollar transactions during the year, thereby resulting in a loss of 

about N387 million on the company's performance. Management is exploring options to 

ameliorate the current pressures.

10.     FINANCE COST

11.� FINANCE INCOME

12. INCOME TAX

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right 
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

12.1.  TAXATION:  CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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The company was granted a tax exemption (tax holiday) certicate by the Nigeria 
Investment Promotion Commission (NIPC) for a period of 5 years commencing in 2011 hence 
there is no taxation in the current period.  Reconciliation between tax expense and the 
product of accounting prot multiplied by Nigeria's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 
December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

12.2. Income tax: Statement of nancial position
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12.3.          Deferred tax

Deferred tax relates to the following:

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net prot for the year 
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share amounts are 
calculated by dividing the net prot attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 
parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all 
the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The deferred tax asset from the company was recognised to the extent of the liability 
during the year, the balance not recognised in the book of the company and the group 
was N541.56million. (2013: N216.65million). Also some of the subsidiaries are not paying 
tax and they do not have assessed losses during the year, (2013: Nil). 
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13.1.�EARNINGS PER SHARE  

14. BUSINESS COMBINATION

 

14.1. Interest in subsidiaries: The summarised nancial information of CWG Limited Ghana, 

CWG Limited Uganda and CWG Limited Cameroon are provided below. This 

information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

 

SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

14.2.    GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to two CGUs, which  

are also operating and reportable segments, for impairment testing as follows: 

1] Software CGU   2] Hardware CGU

Carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs:
   2014 2013
   N'000 N'000

 Software CGU  76,717 76,717
 Hardware CGU**  737,371 737,371
   ------------- -------------
   814,088 814,088
   ======= =======

 **  The hardware CGU is included in the IT segment.

Software CGU
The recoverable amount of software cash generating unit was based on its value in use and 
was determined by discounting the future cash ow projections from the nancial budgets 
approved by senior management covering a 5 years period. Unless indicated the value in 
use in December 2014 was determined in similar way as 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D

The calculation of value in use was based on the following key assumptions:

Cash ow was projected based on past experience, actual operating results and a 5- year 

operating cash-ow in both 2013 and 2014.

Revenue growth rate

The revenue growth rate was based on   4%(2015), 4%(2016) , 5%(2017), 6% (2018) and 

6%(2019). The revenue growth included in the cash ow projections for the years 2015-2019 

has been based on the trend of foreseeable growth in the business segments.

Pre-tax discount rate

The pre-tax discount rate of 17.5% was applied in determining the recoverable amount of 

the unit. The discount rate was estimated based on past experience and industry weighted 

average cost of capital which was based on the incremental borrowing rate. 

Gross/Cost margin

The gross margin has been projected as 32% (2015), 32% (2016), 30% (2017), 30 (2018) and 

28% (2019) while the relevant cost margin was estimated as 68% (2015), 68% (2016), 70% 

(2017) 70% (2018) and 72% (2019).

Hardware CGU

The recoverable amount of hardware CGU generating unit was based on its value in use and 

was determined by discounting the future cash ow projections from the nancial budgets 

approved by senior management covering a 4 years period. Unless indicated the value in 

use in Dec ember 2014 was determined similarly to as in 31 December 2013.  The calculation 

of value in use was based on the following key assumptions:

Cash ow was projected based on past experience, actual operating results and a 5- year 

operating plan in both 2013 and 2014.

Revenue growth rate

The revenue growth rate was based on 5% (2015), 5% (2016), 5% (2017), 5% (2018) and 4% 

(2016). The anticipated annual revenue growth projection for the period is based on trend of 

foreseeable growth in this business segment.

Pre-tax discount rate

The pre-tax discount rate of 18% was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the 

unit. The discount rate was estimated based on past experience and industry weighted 

average cost of capital which was based on the incremental borrowing rate. 

Gross/Cost Margins

The gross margin was projected as 20% (2015), 20% (2016) 20% (2017) 20% (2018) and 19% 

(2016), while the cost margin was estimated at 80% (2015 – 2018) and 81% (2019).

A result of this analysis, there was no impairment charged for Hardware CGU and software 

CGU  in 2013 and 2014.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
1
5
. 

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
, 
P

LA
N

T 
&

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E
N

T 
– 

TH
E
 G

R
O

U
P

2 0 1 4 | A N N U A L R E P O R T & F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S6 6



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
1
5
. 

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
, 
P

LA
N

T 
&

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E
N

T 
– 

TH
E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

2 0 1 4 | A N N U A L R E P O R T & F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S 6 7



2 0 1 4 | A N N U A L R E P O R T & F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S6 8

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D

16.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible assets are in respect of software and an operating licence which was granted 

for a minimum of 10 years by the relevant government agency, the Nigerian Communication 

Commission. The licences have been acquired with the option to renew at the end of the 

period at little or no cost to the Group. The remaining useful life of the licence as at 31 

December 2014 is 4 years. The software is deemed to have a nite useful life and it thus 

amortised over a period of 5 years. As at 31 December 2014, these assets were tested for 

impairment and no indicators of impairment were identied. 

17.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES – THE COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D

18. AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

The group recognise gain or loss on available-for-sale nancial asset within the other 

comprehensive income.

18.1 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures nancial instruments and non-nancial assets at fair value. Fair value is the 

price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or In the absence of a principal market, in the most 

advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.The fair 

value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 

best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-nancial asset takes into account a market 

participant's ability to generate economic benets by using the asset in its highest and best use 

or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufcient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value 

is measured or disclosed in the nancial statements are categorised within the fair value 

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the nancial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is signicant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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As at 31 December 2014, the company and the Group held the following nancial instruments 

carried at fair value on the statement of nancial position:

19. � INVENTORIES

During 2014, N21,954,000 (2013: N10,302,000) was written off and recognised as an 

expense for inventories carried at net realisable value. 

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
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Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. The 

carrying value of these items approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of an initial value of N 70,427,175 (2013: N 

127,816,000) were impaired and fully provided for. See Note 20.1 below for the movements in 

the provision for impairment of receivables for the company and the group 

20.1    ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT ACCOUNT – GROUP AND COMPANY

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables for group and the company are 

as follows:

21.  PREPAYMENTS
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The other payments are mainly attributable to rents and insurance during the year. This rent prepaid 

relates to an operating lease in respect of a staff apartment. Rentals are paid annually in advance if 

the Group elects to renew the lease.

The staff advances are in respect of short-term advances granted to employees of the group at no 

interest. The advances are expected to be received within one year. The carrying value of these items 

approximates their fair values

22.1.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at banks earn interest at oating rates on daily bank deposit rates. The bank overdrafts are 

unsecured and accrue interest at the prevailing market interest rate from time to time.

22.2.Reconciliation of Net  Prot after taxation to Net cash provided by Operating activities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D

23. SHARE CAPITAL 

23.1. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES.

23.1.1. RETAINED EARNINGS

The Group's retained earnings reserve comprises Group's retained earnings, net of 

distribution made to equity holders.

23.1.2. SHARE PREMIUM

The share premium is excess amount received over and above the par value of the 

shares. They form part of the non-distributable reserves of the company which can be 

used only for the purposes specied under Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP 

C20, LFN 2004.

23.1.3 CONVERTIBLE LOAN

On the 2 January 2013, the holder of a convertible loan stock instrument issued by the 

group converted the whole instrument worth US$10,000,000 into 524,800,659 ordinary 

shares of the company. 

23.1.4. AVAILABLE FOR SALE RESERVE

The available for sale reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of 

the Groups available for sale investments.

23.1.5. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The translation reserve comprises all currency exchange differences arising from the 

translation of the nancial statements of non-Naira denominated operations into the 

presentation currency of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D

24.1. OTHER PAYABLES

Terms and conditions of the above nancial liabilities:

· Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 45-day terms

· Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months

For explanations on the Group's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 32.

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

This is a dened contribution scheme promulgated under Pension Reform Act of 2004. The 

Group's obligation under the scheme is limited to specic contributions legislated from time 

to time. As such, the unpaid balance relates to amounts that were payable at the end of the 

relevant reporting periods.

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D

27. SHORT-TERM INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

27.1 INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

26. DEFERRED REVENUE

The deferred revenue represents revenue received in advance in respect of long term service 

contract. Deferred revenue is subsequently recognised in the period that the service is delivered.
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27.2     TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I. UNITED BANK FOR AFRICA SHORT TERM LOAN (SUB-LIMIT OF SBLC/ITF/LC)

 This is a term loan facility to meet short term obligation and to facilitate importation 

and purchase of computer hardware, IT software, Servers plus other telecoms and 

electrical equipment accessories via establishments of LCs/Bills for collection. The 

tenor of the loan is 240days. The interest rate is Naira UBA LCY PLR Currently 20% p.a, 

subject to a oor of 8% p.a

 The loan is secured on debenture over the Company's Fixed and Floating Assets 

currently valued at N1.561 B OMV and N878.5m FSV, Currently to be shared pari-pasu 

with other lenders with UBA interest stamped for N50m, Domiciliation of the payments 

and personal Guarantee of the MD. Austin Okere supported with his notarized 

statements of personal Networth.

II.     ZENITH BANK   SHORT TERM IMPORT FACILITY (STIF)
 This is a term loan facility obtained to nance local purchases and importation of 

Computer hardware, Software, ATMs and other IT infrastructure equipment. The 
facility is available for the establishment of Stand-By Letters of Credit (SBLC), 
Unconrmed LC, Conrmed LC, Deferred Payment LC Usane Line and regular STF. The 
tenor of the loan is 12 months with interest of 19% per annum, which is subject to 
upward or downward review in line with money market realities. The loan is secured on 
Domiciliation of contract proceeds from the clue chip companies to Zenith, 
irrevocable Standing payments Order (ISPO) of contract proceeds from CWG to 
Stanbic IBTC Chartered Bank Plc (Stanbic IBTC) committing to transfer MTN payments 
for contracts nanced by Zenith.

III.     FIRST BANK LPO/IFF/ULC/SBLC/USANE/B&C FACILITY
 This is a term loan facility to nance importation of local purchase of IT software and   

hardware materials, equipment and machinery required for execution of LPOs 
awarded by approved principals. The tenor of the loan is 12months. The interest rate is 
20% per annum subject to future review in line with changes in money market 
conditions. The loan is secured on charge over Company's assets (being managed by 
First Trustee Limited) and domiciliation of contract proceed into customer's account 
with First bank.

IV.    FIDELITY BANK LPO/IFF/CONFIRMATION LINE
 This is a term loan to nance importation (or Local Purchase) of IT software equipment. 

The tenor of the loan is 365 days from the day of set up with interest of 18% per annum, 
which shall be subject to review from time to time in line with the prevailing money 
market condition. The facility shall be secured on irrevocable Letter of Undertaking for 
domiciliation of entire contract /LPO proceeds to Fidelity bank. Shipping Document 
consigned to the order of Fidelity Bank. Comprehensive marine insurance on all items 
of import with Fidelity Bank noted as rst loss payee and Personal Guarantee of MD Mr. 
Austin Okere supported by his statement of net worth.

V.    CISCO SYSTEMS FINANCE INTERNATIONAL LOAN
 This relates to a US Dollar term loan facility of $3,500,000.00 given by Cisco Systems 

Finance International to pay for software/service equipment. The tenor of the loan is 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into 

with related parties for the relevant nancial year (for information regarding outstanding 

balances at 31 December 2014 and 2013, refer to note). 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transactions to and from related parties are made at terms equivalent to those that prevail in 

arm's length transactions.  There have been no guarantees provided or received for any 

related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company 

has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties 

(2014: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each nancial year by examining the nancial 

position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

The Group has no related party transactions other than director's fees. 

The average number of persons employed by the group during the year, including Directors, 

was as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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The numbers of directors whose gross emoluments are within the bands stated below were:-

Staff Costs - Salaries and allowances: 

The number of employees with gross emoluments within the bands stated below were:

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS COMPRISE:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The company as at 31 December 2014 had a commitments in respect  of unused letter of 

credit with First Bank Plc. amounting to N209,197,113.47 (2013: Nil), and letter of credit with 

both Zenith Bank Plc of USD $207,223.12 (2013:USD $474,292.08) and United Bank for Africa 

amounting to USD $1,484,200 (2013:Nill)

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal nancial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and 

borrowings, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these nancial liabilities is to 

nance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The 

Group has loan and other receivables, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-

term deposits that arise directly from its operations. The Group also holds available-for-sale 

investments.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior 

management oversees the management of these risks. The Group's risk management is 

governed by the Board, through the Board Financial, Risk and Audit committee (FARCOM). 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which 

are summarised below.

30.1 MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 

uctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: 

interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as equity price 

risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include: current loans and borrowings, 

deposits, available-for-sale investments.

30.1.1INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 

uctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of 

changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's short-term debt obligations 

with oating interest rates. The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a predominant 

TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company and the Group

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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portfolio of xed rate loans and borrowings. The Group's policy is to keep take oating rate borrowings 

only under exceptional circumstances, where the risks are thoroughly considered and approved. The 

following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the 

Group's only loan stock. With all other variables held constant, the Group's prot before tax will be 

affected as follows:

30.1.2��FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will 

uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes 

in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or 

expense is denominated in a different currency from the Group's functional currency) and the Group's 

net investments in foreign subsidiaries. Management has set up a policy requiring the Group to 

manage their foreign currency risk against their functional currency. The Group is required to manage 

its entire foreign currency risk exposure with the Group nance. To manage their foreign currency risk 

arising from future commercial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities, companies in the 

Group ensure that signicant transaction are contracted in the Group's functional currency. Foreign 

currency risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are 

denominated in a currency that is not the group's functional currency. The Group is mostly affected by 

changes in USD rate than any other foreign currency. The table below shows the sensitivity analysis of 

the Group's prot before tax based on changes in USD rate:

30.2�  CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a nancial instrument or 

customer contract, leading to a nancial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating 

activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its nancing activities, including deposits with 

banks and nancial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other nancial instruments. The 

group and the company's maximum exposure to credit risk taking into account the guarantees 

granted and letters of credit as at year end are shown as follow:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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30.2.1 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, 

procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of the 

customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are 

dened in accordance with this assessment. Customer's credit ratings determine the proportion 

of sales invoice that is required in advance of delivery. The requirement for impairment is analysed 

at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. Additionally, a large number of 

minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment 

collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The Group does not hold 

collateral as security. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade 

receivables as low, as its customers are located in several sectors and industries and operate in 

largely independent markets.

30.2.2FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CASH DEPOSITS

Credit risk from balances with banks and nancial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury 

department in accordance with the Group's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only 

with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counter party. 

Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and 

may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Group's Finance Committee. 

The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate nancial loss 

through potential counterparty's failure to make payments.

30.2.3 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

Credit risks from related parties' transaction are considered very low. This is because they are 

settled or offset against other transactions that can occur in the future.

30.3 �LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and exibility 

through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and nance leases. The Group assessed the 

concentration of risk with respect to renancing its debt and concluded it to be low. Access to 

sources of funding is sufciently available and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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with existing lenders. Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difculty in meeting the 

obligations associated with its nancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another 

nancial asset. The group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 

will always have sufcient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's 

reputation. Recent times have proven the credit markets situation could be such that it is difcult 

to generate capital to nance long-term growth of the Company. The group has a clear focus on 

nancing long-term growth and to re-nance maturing debt obligation. Financing strategies are 

under continuous evaluation.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D

The table below shows the maturity analysis and has been prepared on an undiscounted 

cash ow.
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30.4.    FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY MEASUREMENT BASES
The table below show nancial instruments by their measurement bases:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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The fair values of the nancial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the 

instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than 

in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate 

the fair values:
 Cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables short 

term borrowings and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

31.   CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective 

of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and 

healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The 

Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in 

economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the 

dividend payment to shareholders, or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during 

the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital 

plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, 

trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents. The Group's capital structure and 

debt-equity ratio is shown below:

32. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No event or transaction has occurred since the balance sheet date which would have a 

material effect upon these nancial statements at that date or which would need to be 

mentioned in the nancial statements in order to make them not misleading.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT’D
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

The value added represents the wealth created through the use of the Company's assets 
by its own and its employees' efforts. This statement shows the allocation of wealth amongst 
employees, capital providers, government and that retained for future creation of wealth.
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FIVE -YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY -COMPANY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
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THREE -YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY -GROUP 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
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